

BOOK OF ABSTRACTS

Gjergji Islami

Denada Veizaj

CHRONICLES OF EVER-CHANGING CITYSCAPES	,
BOOK OF ABSTRACTS	
IX AACCP Architecture, Archaeology and Contemporary City Planning symposium, Tirana 2022	

Edited by:

Gjergji Islami, Denada Veizaj

Andronira Burda, Ana Pekmezi, Edmond Pergega

Polytechnic University of Tirana 2022

CHRONICLES OF EVER-CHANGING CITYSCAPES

Book of abstracts

IX AACCP

Architecture, Archaeology and Contemporary City Planning symposium Tirana, 24-25-26 November 2022

Editors:

Gjergji Islami, Denada Veizaj

Associate Editors:

Andronira Burda, Ana Pekmezi, Edmond Pergega

Publisher:

Polytechnic University of Tirana

ISBN: 978-9928-4735-3-0

Design and layout Ana Pekmezi

Copyright © 2022 Gjergji Islami, Denada Veizaj All the abstracts in this volume were peer-reviewed by the symposium's scientific committee

AACCP (Architecture, Archaeology and Contemporary City Planning)

General coordinators:

Per Elias Cornell, University of Gothenburg, Sweden Giorgio Verdiani, University of Florence, Italy Liisa Seppänen, University of Turku, Finland

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Department of Architecture

https://aaccp2022.wordpress.com/

www.upt.al

www.fau.edu.al





AACCP 2022 CHRONICLES OF EVER-CHANGING CITYSCAPES

Tirana, Albania 24-25-26 November 2022.

ORGANISING TEAM

General coordinators of AACCP

Per Elias Cornell, University of Gothenburg, Sweden Giorgio Verdiani, University of Florence, Italy Liisa Seppänen, University of Turku, Finland

Symposium chairs:

Denada Veizaj, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania Gjergji Islami, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania

Organising committee:

Ana Pekmezi, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania Andronira Burda, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania Edmond Pergega, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania

Scientific committee:

Alessandro Camiz, Özyeğin University, Turkey Andrea Maligari, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania Anna Wyn-Jones Frank, Strategisk Arkitekturs, Sweden Armand Vokshi, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania Darko Reba, University of Novi Sad, Serbia Denada Veizaj, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania Elio Hobdari, Academy of Albanian Studies, Albania Federica Pompejano, ICOMOS ISC20C

Florian Nepravishta, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania

Giorgio Verdiani, University of Florence, Italy

Giuseppe Strappa, "Sapienza" University of Rome, Italy

Gjergji Islami, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania

Liisa Seppänen, University of Turku, Finland

Luan Përzhita, Academy of Albanian Studies, Albania

Luigi Corniello, University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Italy

Małgorzata Hanzl, Lodz University of Technology, Poland

Marco Giorgio Bevilacqua, Università di Pisa, Italy

Marco Maretto, University of Parma, Italy

Maria Cristina Gianbruno, Politecnico di Milano, Italy

Massimo Angrilli, Università degli Studi G. d'Annunzio Chieti-Pescara, Italy

Müge Şevketoğlu, Cyprus International University, Cyprus

Nadia Charalambous, University of Cyprus, Cyprus

Nevter Zafer Cömert, Eastern Mediterranean University, Cyprus

Olimpia Niglio, Hokkaido University, Japan

Pablo Rodríguez-Navarro, Univesitat Politècnica de València, Spain

Per Elias Cornell, University of Gothenburg, Sweden

Pier Federico Caliari, Politecnico di Torino, Italy

Roberta Spallone, Politecnico di Torino, Italy

Şebnem Hoşkara, Eastern Mediterranean University, Cyprus

Sercan Sağlam, Koç University, Research Center for Anatolian Civilizations (ANAMED), Turkey

Sinan Burat, Mersin University, Turkey

Thomas Rankin, California Polytechnic, USA

Wolfgang H. Börner, Museen der Stadt Wien, Austria

Zeynep Ceylanlı, Özyeğin University, Turkey

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AACCP Call for papers	11
SUSTAINABILITY, RESILIENCE AND CITY PLANNING	12
Fragments around the Mediterranean area: small archaeological traces behind extremely complex routes Giorgio Verdiani	15
"Quo Vadis" Tirana? Urban analyses and possible strategic actions Fabio Naselli Mariateresa Giammetti	17
Exploring reconciliation of conservation and development through a values-based approach in territorial planning. The case of the old bazaar of Kruja as urban landscape Marsela Plyku Demaj Ronela Çuku	19
Ecologies of Decay: Working with the unwanted industrial heritage of Southeast Europe Dimitra Gkitsa	21
The city network through travellers' diaries Felicia Di Girolamo Raffaela Fiorillo Angelo De Cicco Gennaro Pio Lento	23
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION OF THE HISTORICAL ENVIRONMENT, RURAL TERRITORIES AND LANDSCAPES	25
Abandon and new meaning. Fortified landscapes of WW1 in the Alps Francesco Collotti	27
New analysis and access strategies for historical villages. A new connection for Monte Regio Castle in Massa Marittima, Italy Sofia Pieri	29
Evaluating the development of an urban site through morphological analysis; case of Ortamahalley Beliz Büşra Şahin Ahmet Melih Öksüz	31

Regenerating the existing. The project of the complex Escuelas Pías de San Fernando in Madrid Angela Benfante	33
Increasing the public awareness about the importance of heritage Besar Zifla Gjergj Ruci	35
The Revitalization of city centres under the Renaissance program Fiona Nepravishta Florian Nepravishta	37
Dialogue of real and digital models in Albanian architecture Jonida Meniku	39
IDEOLOGY, POLITICS AND ARCHITECTURE	41
The Cathedral and the Mouse - how does collective authorship change our sense of guilt Călin Dan	43
Neonationalist architecture in Albania. A postsocialist syndrome Gjergji Islami Denada Veizaj	45
The Recycling of National Myths in Architecture: Buda Castle in the long 20 th -century Orsolya Anna Sudár	47
Prefabricated structures and minimal houses in Italy and Albania during the fascist period: the "casette Pater" Riccardo Serraglio Danila Jacazzi	49
A fragment of Prishtina city, through time and history Teuta Jashari Kajtazi Rinë Zogiani	51
Social Mobilization of Kosovo Albanians during the '90s and the Parallel city of Prishtina Eliza Hoxha	53
THE ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND HISTORICAL TRACES AND THEIR INFLUENCE IN THE URBAN MORPHOLOGY	55
Gothenburg. Change, Transformation and Continuity Per Cornell	57
Small scale vs large scale urban interventions, Tirana case Juljan Veleshnja	59
The concept and the importance of social sustainability for contemporary architecture and the city Françeska Delia	61

Conservation of Heritage Buildings in the Bilisht Bazaar Vjola Ilia	63
CONSERVATION OF THE CULTURE; ARCHAEOLOGY, RESTORATION, REGENERATION AND DOCUMENTATION	65
Heritage in the church attics - aspects, actions, and accessibility Liisa Seppänen Panu Savolainen	67
Knowledge and archival documentation of monastic architecture Angelo De Cicco Raffaela Fiorillo Felicia Di Girolamo	69
The knowledge of performance spaces Rosa de Caro Angelo de Cicco Luigi Corniello	71
Fortified architectures in Eastern Greece Luigi Corniello Raffaela Fiorillo Gennaro Pio Lento	73
Structures for the storage of goods in the Piraeus harbour Enrico Mirra	75
Surveys from the sea. Experiences in the Chalkidiki Peninsula Gennaro Pio Lento Angelo De Cicco Fabiana Guerriero Rosa De Caro Luigi Corniello	77
Networks for the Enhancement of Adriatic Harbour Warehouse Enrico Mirra Felicia Di Girolamo Adriana Trematerra	79
Evolving heritage for an evolving city: the murals in the city of Pesaro and their conservation Laura Baratin Francesca Gasparetto Veronica Tronconi	81
Preservation of architectural heritage vs modernity? Some experiences in the south of Albania Mariacristina Giambruno Sonia Pistidda	83

"A discourse on Cultural Heritage, Period 1919-39". The connection of the architectural models with the numerical models, through hBIM tools Nikolla Vesho Romir Mazari Megi Sinani	85
Digital models for the knowledge and protection of coastal heritage Gennaro Pio Lento Adriana Trematerra Fabiana Guerriero Luigi Corniello	87
Analysis and knowledge of the natural and built heritage. A case study in Salerno province Adriana Trematerra Enrico Mirra Rosa De Caro Luigi Corniello	89
Social media and digital technologies: interactive guides for the city of Florence Ylenia Ricci Andrea Pasquali	91
Climate and Conservation in Albanian Museum Buildings Etleva Bushati	93
BUILDING IN THE 21 ST CENTURY	
Digitalisation of Architecture and Acoustics of Music Theatres to Preserve Cultural Heritage Sophie Schauer Jürgen Sieck Federico Cioli Andrea Lumini Stefano Bertocci Nataliya Shakhovska	97
Living behind the double-walls Anjeza Llubani Edlira Koleci	99
The footprints of nowadays cities for the next generation Saimira Arapi Enkela Alimadhi	101
Real estate market trends development in Astir from buyer's preferences Kledina Sallaku Sabrina Sadushi	103

AACCP 2022 CALL FOR PAPERS

AACCP (Architecture, Archaeology and Contemporary City Planning) is a multidisciplinary and progressive network, which has gathered together researchers, experts and practitioners from various fields to discuss topics related to urban development and city planning since 2014. One of the main aims of the network is to promote collaboration between different actors and increase understanding of the profitable co-existence of the past, present and future in urban environments. With this task in mind, we are happy to invite you to the ninth AACCP symposium organized in collaboration with the Department of Architecture DA-FAU, at the Polytechnic Universitety of Tirana in Tirana, Albania on November 24th-26th, 2022.

With the theme CHRONICLES OF EVER-CHANGING CITYSCAPES we are inviting contributors to present papers that fall within the cross section of architecture, archaeology and city planning and are related, but not limited, to the following topics:

Symposium themes

- Sustainability, resilience and city planning
- The archaeological and historical traces and their influence in the urban morphology
- Development and regeneration of the historical environment
- The impact of war, disasters and crisis on the built environment and cultural heritage
- Planning of the rural territories and landscapes
- Conservation of the culture; archaeology, restoration, regeneration and documentation
- Ideology, politics and architecture
- Building in the 21st century

If you wish to participate in the symposium and present your studies, experiences and ideas at the AACCP 2022 in Tirana, please submit your proposal with an abstract (maximum 3000 characters for the abstract, spaces included, a short bio 1000 characters spaces included, and a photo, using the abstract template) by July 25th, 2022. The abstracts will be peer reviewed by the scientific committee; we will announce acceptance by email within September 6th. You may also participate in the meeting without a paper. The programme consists of presentations, discussions and a walking tour in Tirana, as well as social activities that have proved to be very fruitful and to bring interesting ideas for a new kind of research and collaboration. We will publish the full programme on the website by September 19th, 2022.

The Polytechnic University of Tirana will kindly host the meeting. Participation to the symposium is free, but each participant should pay for accommodation, meals and other activities. All participants, even those who will not present a paper, should register to the symposium by November 18th, 2022. We will send further details about the registration to those who have submitted an abstract by July 15th. We will publish the papers of the AACCP 2022 in a PDF volume with ISBN code. Deadline for full paper submission (using the provided template) is, January 8th 2023.

We are looking forward to spend productive days together in Tirana. Tirana, May 20th, 2022.

On behalf of the organising team: Denada Veizaj and Gjergji Islami





O1 SUSTAINABILITY, RESILIENCE AND CITY PLANNING



Fragments around the Mediterranean area: small archaeological traces behind extremely complex routes

Giorgio Verdiani

University of Florence, Dipartimento di Architettura, giorgio.verdiani@unifi.it

Keywords: Spolia, Artworks, Remains, Cultural Heritage

ABSTRACT

The transformation of the urban tissue is not something that goes on with a uniform processing, even when who plans operates a complete restructuring of the urban pattern some elements, from entire buildings to small piece of art reconnect the past to the time of the new reality. This is even more evident in the Mediterranean area, where a very long tradition of marketing and travelling combined with the use and modelling of stone and masonry elements (and then extremely long-lived), but in parallel with a significant series of destructive events, like wars, earthquakes, significative urban restructuring, together with a cultural predisposition in the appreciation of stone elements, created the conditions for keeping a large number of elements coming from different ages all around the urban evolution. Sometimes these elements are remains from the place, and sometimes they come from somewhere else and are then a sort of "migrating" heritage, the renewal changes conditions, cancel memories and new imaginative ideas may rise around these pieces. The theory of the spolia, well developed by Stefano Settis, will be at the base of the correct interpretation of the elements in use in architecture that are different from their original setup, but will be extended to the logic of intervention on the reuse of specific building, remains of a past town that in various way evolved into the present one, like for the Amphitheatre in Lucca, Italy or certain towers in Trabzon, Turkey, or simply when the historical building remains standing in between a completely changed cityscape, as it is possible to see in Tirana, Albania. A tentative for a possible taxonomy for the architectural/ single elements will be proposed and shared in the workshop. For the single (sometimes migrating) elements, this contribution will present an excursion between various and significant elements of these phenomena will be presented, showing how an efficient documentation, a proper interpretation of the cultural aspects of these elements, may define cultural routes and valuable paths to knowledge about extremely complex and intricated events. The use of digital survey, especially photogrammetry, will be at the base of each case study, moving then to geometric interpretation and multimedia dissemination of the new produced content. In between the various case studies: the Tetrarchs Statue in Venice, coming from Constantinople/ Istanbul, the Medusas Heads in Istanbul, the ship stone from the Baptistery in Florence and once again the red-burned columns on the main façade of the Florentine Baptistery. From the single piece to the building, to the network of events connecting the Mediterranean history a proposal of contemporary interpretation for the cultural network of past choices and events will be presented in all its fascinating value.

References

Bassett, S. (2015). The Urban Image of Late Antique Constantinople. Cambridge, UK.

Dorigo, W. (2004). Spolia marmorei d'oltremare a Venezia (secoli XI-XIV). In Saggi e memorie di storia dell'arte, 28. pp. 1-13, Fondazione Giorgio Cini, Italia.

Mancuso, A., Pasquali, A. (2015). Different ways lead to different results? Experiences on modern photogram-metric surveying on cultural heritage subjects, in *Proceedings of the CHNT* Conference 2014, Museen der Stadt Wien, Austria.

Rees, R. (1993). Images and Image: A Re-examination of Tetrarchic Iconography. In Greece & Rome, Second Series, 40 (2), pp. 181-200.

Ricci, Y., Verdiani, G., Pasquali, A. (2018). A Petrified Petrifying Eyesight: A Story for the Medusa's heads from Istanbul, Turkey. In Proceedings of the CHNT Conference 2018. Museen der Stadt Wien, Austria.

Settis, S. (1984). Memoria dell'antico nell'arte italiana. Einaudi, Torino, Italia.

Stephenson, P. (2016). The Serpent Column: A Cultural Biography. OUP USA.

"Quo Vadis" Tirana? Urban analyses and possible strategic actions

Fabio Naselli

Epoka University, Department of Architecture, fnaselli@epoka.edu.al

Mariateresa Giammetti

Federico II University, Department of Architecture, mariateresa.giammetti@unina.it

Keywords: cultural heritage, city, transformation

ABSTRACT

Cities in transition - like Tirana is - are transforming fast: the main driver of transformation is always the economy that pushes up in transforming, demolishing, and/or rebuilding large portions of the consolidated city, according to its predominant and variable development strategies. Watching it through these economic dynamics' lenses, too often historical heritage is perceived as it is exhausted in its urban role, or not perceived at all, simply standing as debris of past building activity. All around and within its inner parts, the "Modern City" grows up and consumes new soil, as well as large leftover spaces; stressing yet furthermore unbalances among the city's parts that can no longer be overlooked. Tirana's actual urban palimpsest is made up of layers that belong to the pre-Ottoman agricultural town; the Ottoman city; the rationalist architecture promoted first by the new King Zoku and then by the Italians; the socialist period with the rational blocks and new working settlements; the neo-liberal informal period after the fall of communism; and, finally, the contemporary development toward a less clear "modernization" (led by the new high-rise buildings that are radically changing the cityscape as well as affecting the deepest urban identity). These current transformations, which look only inspired by building new "built-volumes", out of paying any attention to the urban multidimensions, seem to be radically obliterating Tirana's historical and cultural urban identity.

These development scenarios add up to Tirana's turbulent and chaotic post-socialist urban development that radically challenged the existential meaning of its urban identity: on the one hand, the city's historical urban pattern was characterized by pre-Socialist and socialist stratifications, and on the other hand, the disproportionate post-socialist built environment that led to a hybrid and cacophonous identity, which asks "Quo Vadis" Tirana? The traditional human-scale Tirana cityscapes, made of mono-family-houses, small-scale buildings, and a huge set of micro informal implementations and adaptations, are nowadays at risk of a blinded unconditional replacement by the new large urban blocks with minimal attention to the legacy of the city. Today, despite the city managers' aim to shape a new Modern City, giving order to the "informal spontaneity" generated in the early socialism fall, something is still missing in Tirana's next development strategies as drafted in the in-force Master Plan.

The article strives to present the first results of research developed at the Departments of Architecture at both Epoka and Federico II Universities. The research aim is to learn from these evolutionary dynamics of the city, to understand the values of the layers that made up Tirana in different moments of its historical evolution, and to map out the typological and morphological characteristics that define both urban identity and cityscapes that must be protected. The research aims to define a proposal for a possible "missing" strategy targeted to protect and enhance that scattered historic soul of Tirana.

- Aliaj, B., Lulo, K. (2003). The City of Tirana, History of Architecture and Urban Development, in: "Tirana the Challenge of Urban Development" B. Aliaj, K. Lulo and M. Genc, Eds., SLOALBA Publishers, Skofja Loka, Albania.
- Bulleri, A. (2018). Back to the future. Architecture and urban planning for an (extra)ordinary metropolis, OFL-Oil Forest League, Rionero in Vulture Italy.
- Lydon, M. et al. (2012). Tactical Urbanism. Short-Term Action, Long-Term Change. Handbook series, Vol. 1-4, the street plans collaborative, New York, USA.
- Mali, F. (Ed.) (2018). HAPESIRA/ZEROSPACE. Albanian Pavillon 2018 at La Biennale di Venezia. 16th International Exhibition of Architecture, RSH Ministria e Kultures, Tirana, Albania.
- Naselli, F., Trapani, F. (2019). "Ephemeral Regeneration" for the Marginal Urban Spaces/Places in Enna. Planum Publisher, Roma-Milano, Italy.
- Naselli, F. (2021). Tirana-Next. A Complementary Development Strategy (and consequent Urban Tactics) for the informal & historical urban fabrics within Tirana Super Blocks. In: Yunitsyna, A. et Al. (Eds) Current Challenges in Architecture and Urbanism in Albania (pp. 61-78). Springer Nature.
- Pashako, F. (2016). The legacy of informality in Albanian landscape, in: "EVOKED. Architectural Diptychs" D. Pastore, Ed., Edizioni Giuseppe Laterza srl, Bari, Italy.
- Zeka, E., Mali, F. (2018). Spaces to Places, in: "HAPESIRA/ZEROSPACE. Albanian Pavillon 2018", F. Mali Ed., RSH Ministria e Kultures, Tirana, Albania.

Exploring reconciliation of conservation and development through a values-based approach in territorial planning. The case of the old bazaar of Kruja as urban landscape

Marsela Plyku Demaj

Polis University, marselaplyku@gmail.com

Ronela Çuku

National Institute for Cultural Heritage, ronelacuku@gmail.com

Keywords: values-based approach, territorial planning, old bazaar of Kruja

ABSTRACT

Throughout history, the choice of space for the foundation of a city has been conditioned on the requirement for being well protected. Fortified cities are thus among the most ancient and long-lasting settlements. The birth of the unfortified, therefore open city, in Albanian territory, has reappeared during the late Middle Ages, around the 12th century. This phenomenon is essential towards shaping the cities' character, through transition from a strategic administrative and to some extent craftsman centre, to a centre in which the ever-increasing production factor was of paramount importance. The interconnection between fortified city and open city is clearly in favour of the latter, while the fortified settlement is either abandoned or remains as an inhabited unit of the open city such as Berat, Kruja etc. The old bazaar, as the commercial heart of the open city, occupies an important place in urban centres of the medieval period. It was the only production and exchange centre until around the beginning of the 20th century when the decline of many of these ensembles began, caused mainly by the emerging of individual commercial units in the city's inhabited neighborhoods. This article analyses the case of the urban context of the old bazaar of Kruja, which is the oldest among remaining ensembles of this type in Albania. It was one of the first four urban ensembles designated from the State as "Museum City" in 1961 (together with Berat, Gjirokastra and the Underground of Durrës". Some of the challenges that Kruja, and in general the historic urban landscapes in Albania face today are: the impact caused by real estate and tourism pressure, the overlap of different protection competences under the management of cultural heritage institutions and municipal levels, the presence of post '90s illegal and uncontrolled development, and incompatible architectural design on new buildings as well. The conception of the city as a mechanical system geared towards material needs, has led to new architectural concepts and corresponding planning techniques that are less rooted in overarching cultural frameworks. These challenges in many cases, result in a type of 'development' present in the form of an aggressive, rationally produced activity. This type of development tends to ignore the cultural and environmental values as well as local identity of the historic place. This article explores the role of a values-based approach in territorial planning as driver for both an effective conservation and sustainable development. It also raises some questions about the need to define new planning strategies and instruments that serve as support for the conservation of this historic ensemble. A detailed overview of the historic bazaar of Kruja in its wider urban context is expected to analyze the strengths and weaknesses of the current territorial planning strategies and propose some recommendations that enhance the use of a values-based approach in territorial planning.

- Baçe, A., Karaiskaj, Gj., Meksi, A., Thomo, P., Riza, E., (2016). Historia e Arkitekturës Shqiptare, Kristalina KH
- Bandarin, F., & Van Oers, R. (Eds.). (2015). Reconnecting the City: The historic urban landscape approach and the future of urban heritage. Chichester: John Wiley & Sons
- Riza, E. (2009). *Qyteti dhe banesa qytetare shqiptare gjatë shek. XV XIX.* Tiranë: Botimet "Dita 2000".
- Roders A. P., Bandarin F., (Eds.). (2019). Reshaping Urban Conservation The Historic Urban Landscape Approach in Action Creativity, Heritage and the City. Springer

Ecologies of Decay: Working with the unwanted industrial heritage of Southeast Europe

Dimitra Gkitsa

d.gkitsa@ucl.ac.uk

Keywords: industrial archaeology, post-industrialism, unwanted heritage

ABSTRACT

With the collapse of the socialist regimes in Southeast Europe monuments, memorials, and buildings associated with the socialist past were turned into an "unwanted heritage". Sites of memory (Nora, 1989) that escaped demolition were turned into cultural spaces of the so-called "dark tourism" whose mission is to reveal the dark years of the totalitarian regime. The visual and material remnants of the socialist past evoke even nowadays contested and perplexed memories making it more difficult to understand not only the socialist reality itself, but also the socio-political transformation that followed with the transition to neoliberal democracy. While historical buildings in the centre of major post-socialist cities are in the spotlight of dilemmas on whether they can be restored and reused or simply demolished, former socialist factories lie in decay unnoticeably on the rural peripheries. These factories have turned into an unwanted modern archaeology. Although they remain invisible from public debates, they are still part of the urban fabric as well as the collective memory of its local communities. How can we reclaim and co-exist with this difficult heritage imbued with contested historic and political connotations? What is to be done with the material and visual remnants of industrial archaeology in the present?

Between dilemmas of what is left to be remembered and what is left to be thrown into oblivion, this paper puts forward an alternative exploration of the ways in which architecture becomes an active witness of the changes that followed the collapse of state socialism by using as an entry point the underrepresented post-industrial modern ruins and its ecologies of decay. Drawing on the concept of the commons (De Angelis, 2017; Stavrides, 2019), and affect theory (Berlant, 2011; Ahmed, 2014), this paper argues that post-industrial archaeology in the post-socialist cities are sites of modern heritage which can transform the difficult knowledge of the past into critical articulations about the conditions that define the present.

This paper draws a comparative analysis on ruinded factories in Albania (Metallurgical Complex, Elbasan), Bulgaria (Veliko Tarnovo), and Serbia (Leteks Kombinat, Leskovac). The above casestudies have been chosen after a careful consideration of the diverse experiences and histories under state socialism as well as the distinct socio-political peculiarities of the closure of factories in Southeast Europe. The paper investigates the transformations that have occurred in the de-industrialised post-socialist city, including changes in landscape, infrastructure, and public space, through an analysis of contemporary visual practices from artists, curators, and architects that work with the material and visual remnants of industrial heritage.

- Ahmed, Sara (2014). Cultural Politics of Emotions. Edinburgh: Edinburgh University Press.
- Berlant, Lauren (2011). Cruel Optimism. Durham and London: Duke University Press.
- Bonfiglioli, Chiara (2020). Women and Industry in the Balkans: The Rise and Fall of the Yugoslav Textile Sector. London and New York: I.B. Tauris.
- Dalakoglou, Dimitris (2012). 'The Road from Capitalism to Capitalism': Infrastructures of (Post) Socialism in Albania. Mobilities 7 (4): 571-586.
- De Angelis, Massimo (2017). Omnia Sunt Communia: On the Commons and the Transformation to Postcapitalism. London: Zed Books.
- Lehrer, E., Milton, M. E., Patterson, C. (eds.). (2011). Curating Difficult Knowledge: Violent Pasts in Public Spaces. New York and Basingstoke: Palgrave Macmillan.
- Mah, Alice (2012). Industrial Ruination, Community, and Place: Landscapes and Legacies of Urban Decline. Toronto and London: University of Toronto Press.
- Nora, Pierre (1989). Between Memory and History: Les Lieux de Mémoire, Representations, No. 26, 7 - 24.
- Stavrides, Stavros (2019). Common spaces of urban emancipation. Manchester: Manchester University Press.
- Sula-Raxhimi, Enkelejda (2021). Heterotopias of Displacement: The Production of Space in Postsocialist Albania, Remitting, Restoring and Building Contemporary Albania. Eds. Nataša Gregorič Bon & Smoki Musaraj. Palgrave Macmillan.

The city network through travellers' diaries

Felicia Di Girolamo

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Dipartimento di Architettura e Disegno Industriale, felicia.digirolamo@unicampania.it

Raffaela Fiorillo

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Dipartimento di Architettura e Disegno Industriale, raffaela.fiorillo@unicampania.it

Angelo De Cicco

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Dipartimento di Architettura e Disegno Industriale, angelo.decicco@unicampania.it

Gennaro Pio Lento

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Dipartimento di Architettura e Disegno Industriale, gennaropio.lento@unicampania.it

Keywords: Cities, documents, travel

ABSTRACT

In the travel diaries of pilgrims, travellers and those who chose to make long crossings and journeys to uncharted lands, the social, cultural and especially urban changes are visible as examples of a history transformed over time. Travellers, interested in learning about and passing on cultures and places, have always been considered witnesses to a continuous changing world that, being told through their eyes, has handed down remarkable examples of urban and social change. The Ionian Sea has always been an important transit route and it has enabled the discovery and development of numerous islands and places initially used as stopover destinations during the travels of those who decided to reach distant and unknown lands such as the Holy Land and Jerusalem. One of the most important and major islands is the Ionian Island of Kefalonia which designated, due to its geopolitical position, stretches of coastline traversed by large numbers of pilgrims and travellers in the 16th century. The study of the island of Kefalonia, through geographic and iconographic sources, has been documented since ancient times: in fact, it is featured in the well-known Tabula Peutingeriana and is also present in other great examples of odeporic literature such as Benedetto Bordone's isolario of the year 1534, Tommaso Porcacchi's isolario of the year 1590 and lastly Henry De Beauvau's itinerary of the year 1615. The first isolario, dedicated to the description of islands placed in the Mediterranean, presents Kefalonia completely absent of an urban network but simply as "a mountainous land full of woodlands" where the only pre-existing urban points resided in the

monastery of St. Francesco and the port of Fiskardo. In the second example cited, the island is presented, although mountainous, as rich in new pre-urban points consisting of castles, villages and many inhabited villas, as described by the author himself during the narration of his journey. Finally, in De Beauvau's itinerary it is visible how the passage of years allowed the construction of new "urban spaces" and nuclei of aggregation that allow for a more specific analysis of the island and its inhabited area during the 17th century. Kefalonia, today an administrative peripheral community of the Ionian Islands, has often been documented over the centuries with cartographies and documents that show how important it was during the classical period, through the medieval one and to the time of its belonging to the Republic of Venice. Therefore, the research activity allowed for the comparison of historical, graphic and iconographic data, and it is evident how, through the drawings, an increasing constant over time emerged and allows for the analysis and comparison of the evolution of urban spaces through history and cartographic documentation. The aim is to draw attention to the consistency of historic cities in the present in order to protect and enhance them.

- Bordone, B. (1534), Isolario di Benedetto Bordone nel qual si ragiona di tutte l'isole del mondo: con li lor nomi antichi & moderni,[...]; Con il breve del papa; et gratia & priuilegio della illustrissima Signoria di Venetia come in quelli appare, Venezia.
- Crevato-Selvaggi, B. (2013), Cefalonia Veneziana: le vicende e l'amministrazione. In Biblion Edizioni Cefalonia e Itaca al tempo della Serenissima, Documentazione e cartografia in biblioteche venete, Milano.
- De Beauvau, H. (1615), BEAUVAU Relation Iournalière du Voyage du Levant faict & descrit Beauvau [...]Reveu augmenté et enrichy par l'Autheur de pourtraicts des lieux les plus remaguables, Jacob Garnich Imprimeur, Nancy.
- Metaxàs, C. (1882), Memorie storiche sulla Rivoluzione Ellenica tradotte dal greco dall'Avv. Vincenzo Grotta. Tipografia del Serchio, Lucca.
- Porcacchi, T. (1590), L'isole più famose del mondo descritte da Thomaso Porcacchi da Castiglione Arretino e intagliate da Girolamo Porro padovano. Con l'aggiunta di molte isole [...]. Con privilegio, Venezia.
- Tommaseo, N. (1872), Storia civile nella letteraria studii di N. Tommaseo. Ermanno Loescher, Torino.

O2 DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION OF THE HISTORICAL ENVIRONMENT, RURAL TERRITORIES AND LANDSCAPES



ABANDON AND NEW MEANING Fortified landscapes of WW1 in the Alps

Francesco Collotti

University of Florence, DIDA Dipartimento di Architettura, francesco.collotti@unifi.it

Keywords: WW1, battlefields, landscape regeneration

ABSTRACT

Policy and societal attitudes towards abandoned settlements in mountainous regions have been the subject of debate for many years now.

Silent transformations, the desertion of homes and landscapes at higher altitudes, the retreat of communities and jobs from the valleys, have shaped, and in some cases continue to shape, mountainous Alpine areas. Since the 1970s, for a number of specific sites, the cycle of abandonment has been replaced by the rapid development of ski resorts and, more generally, tourism that has favored consumerism over balanced growth. Climate change and recent events such as the pandemic, have exposed the vulnerabilities of an undiversified approach to "development".

The mountain landscape is a system: one can reconstruct isolated hamlets and connect them to create artificial resorts, but this approach will not succeed in restoring a sense of community to these places. Characterized by isolated villages and small clusters, the alpine landscape was once tied to the historic construction of the land. An architectural installation of nature: contour lines become dry-stone walls and terraces, vineyards or pergolas at lower altitudes, sheep pens higher up, retaining walls that define homes or farms, parallel structures arranged at right angles to the slope with thick walls and small slits to season cheese or wooden grates to dry hay.

We revisit the theme of abandonment and development, not from the negative viewpoint of renunciation , but in an attempt to offer a different idea of regeneration that emphasizes landscape heritage, once a silent witness, as the defining resource and fundamental building block of community life.

Since the late 1990s, we have worked extensively with the Autonomous Province of Trento on proposals that enhance the cultural heritage of the mountain region and transcend 'hit-and-run' tourism as the only viable path to regenerate abandoned places at high altitudes2. European funding for the regeneration of depressed rural areas, though limited, has been a catalyst and has enabled us to implement a number of projects to restore fortified sites dating from the WW1. These cultural landscapes and their inherent historic, environmental and economic

value were highlighted and these in turn generated a recovery based on the enhancement of cultural heritage that had been seen as marginal. The project to restore the fortified landscapes of the WW1 was carried out with the support of the Superintendent for Cultural Heritage of the Autonomous Province of Trento in cooperation with local administrations that understood the potential of the project. The project for the Austro-Hungarian fortress at Pozzacchio, an unfinished underground structure, dating from the outbreak of WW1, is part of this series of projects dedicated to the regeneration of fortified landscapes.

References

Caja M., Iarossi M.P. (2018). L'Architettura del Museo. Disegno, modello, progetto. La scuola di Pitagora editrice, Napoli

Collotti, F. (2002). Appunti per una teoria dell'architettura, Quart Verlag, Luzern

Collotti, F. (2018). Idea civile di architettura - Scritti scelti 1990-2017, Lettera Ventidue, Siracusa

P. Giromini, Transformations silencieuses: étude sur l'architecture alpine, (Directeurs de thèse Proff. Nicola Braghieri, Luca Ortelli) EPFL Lausanne, thèse doctoral n°7599, 2021.

Rumiz, P. (2007). La leggenda dei monti naviganti. Milano: Feltrinelli

Ungaretti, G. (1969). Vita d'un uomo. Tutte le poesie. Milano: Mondadori

Wu Ming 1 (2015). Cent'anni a Nordest, viaggio tra i fantasmi della guera granda. Milano: RCS Libri

New analysis and access strategies for historical villages. A new connection for Monte Regio Castle in Massa Marittima, Italy

Sofia Pieri

University of Florence, sofi.pieri@gmail.com

Keywords: Bim Heritage, fortification, connection

ABSTRACT

The place of the research is the downtown of Massa Marittima, a mediaeval town settled in the context of the metalliferous hills, dominated by the Monte Regio Castle which was the first fortification built by the Aldobrandeschi in the 9th century, around which the current town developed., A town characterised by two different city Walls, which separate the Città Nuova from Città Vecchia. Starting from digital survey's campaigns started in 2006, an organised database of information has been develop to be able to design new ideas. In particular, starting from two kind of surveys: one aerial with drone and the other one terrestrial with 3D laser scanner, from them a fully textured polygonal model and an aligned point cloud were obtained, two useful dataset for extracting detailed drawings of the actual state of the urban structure and landscape. A set of fundamental information used to plan new connections across the urban tissue, in the will of giving a contemporary mobility to a town with an articulated development with different heights. The project develops from an early idea about creating a new connection between the upper town and the lower town, with a new elevator mechanical system to connect the former Mazzini cinema with Monte Regio's Castle, one of the most critical points of the typical tourist pedestrian path in discovering the downtown. This mechanical system integrated in the landscape doesn't aspire to be just a solution to a specific site with an huge slope degree, but a new strategy that aims to make a place usable and accessible to all people. The strategy starting from the different relief the airborne with drone and the digital terrestrial one via laser scanner, making geometric and material analysis possible. The proposed intervention will analyse the balance between the digital technologies used for creating a proper base, the level of reading they offer to the designer and the influence they have in the definition of the intervention. The resulting proposal will be then analized and commented on the front of its impact on the urban transformation and how this is readable from the digital proposal to the delicate urban environment.

- Aranguren B., Bagnoli P., Negri M., Farinelli R., Dallai L. (2007), Serrabottini (Massa Marittima, GR): indagini archeologiche su un antico campo minerario, in Archeologia Medievale, vol.34, pp. 79-94, Firenze.
- Asso P.F. (2003), Itinerari Garibaldini In Toscana e Dintorni 1848-1867, Centro Stampa Regione Toscana, Firenze.
- Baggianl F. (1985), Monumenti di arte organaria toscana, Pacini Editore, Pisa
- Carli E. (1976), La città: aspetto e vicende urbanistiche, in L'arte a Massa Marittima, CentroOffset, Siena.
- Galli Da Modigliana S. (1873), Memorie storiche di Massa Marittima, Massa Marittima-Portoferraio.
- Guerrini G. (editor) (1999), Torri e Castelli della Provincia di Grosseto, Edizioni Nuova Immagine,
- Lombardi E., Tarabochia E.C. (1985), Massa Marittima e il suo territorio nella storia e nell'arte, Cantagalli, Siena.
- Mandelli E. (2009), Le mura di Massa Marittima, una doppia città fortificata, Pacini Editore, Pisa.

Evaluating the development of an urban site through morphological analysis; case of Ortamahalle

Beliz Büşra Şahin

Karadeniz Technical University, Department of Architecture, belizbusrasahin@ktu.edu.tr

Ahmet Melih Öksüz

Karadeniz Technical University, Department of Architecture, m_oksuz@ktu.edu.tr

Keywords: urban morphology, development of urban sites, Ortamahalle urban site

ABSTRACT

Urban sites as historical settlements consist of layers belonging to different ages (UNESCO, 2011). While the existence of the various layers in the urban texture may facilitate reading the historical pattern of the city, it also emerges as clues to the development process. Urban morphology as a field of studying urban form (Larkham, 1998) enables the examination of urban areas with different features within pioneer approaches in the field (Conzen, 1960; Caniggia & Maffei, 2001). And implementing urban morphological approaches on historic sites may provide a different context to evaluate the developmental process in such historic settlements (Whitehand, Gu, Whitehand & Zhang, 2011).

This study aims to examine the morphological analysis of a historical settlement, Ortamahalle Urban Site, which is located in Akçaabat county of Trabzon, in the Blacksea Region of Turkey. It is assumed that the settlement survived from 14. Century but there are few structures remaining from that period. While today the settlement is mostly famous for the traditional houses, there are also buildings incompatible with this pattern because of the development process of the study field, which was nominated as Protected Area in the late 1980s. Today, there are still ongoing conservational works in the study field (Kiper, Sağlam, Akpınar & Sarı, 1992).

Within this context, the method of the study focuses on the morphological approach developed by M.R.G. Conzen. The transformation of the street system, figure-ground pattern and land-use features in the study field between 1992 and 2019 was examined. City maps and development plans dated different years were used for analyses. The research showed that while the street-system did not undergo an essential transformation, figure-ground pattern transformed substantially both in the second and third dimensions. Moreover, it was detected from the study that how related to the transformation of the physical texture and the production practices since the land use features in the study field changed substantially in almost 30 years. Transformation in the study field also revealed crucial data about the developmental features and the characteristics of the study field, which also showed the potential data that, can be obtained within morphological studies in such historic urban areas.

- Conzen, M.R.G. (1960). Alnwick, Northumberland: A study in town-plan analysis. London, England: Orge Philip and Son.
- Caniggia, G., Maffei, G. L. 2001 (1979). Architectural composition and building typology: Interpreting basic building. Firenze: Alinea.
- Kiper, P., Akpınar F., Sağlam, D., Sarı, M. (1992). Investigation report of Ortamahalle conservation plan. Ankara, Turkey: Iller Bank General Directorate of Ankara.
- Larkham, P.J. (1998). Urban morphology and typology in the United Kingdom. Petruccioli A (ed) Typological Process and Design Theory. Aga Khan Program for Islamic Architecture, Cambridge, (159-178).
- UNESCO. Recommendation on the Historic Urban Landscape (HUL), Including a Glossary of Definitions; UNESCO: Paris, France, 2011. Available online: https://whc.unesco. org/uploads/activities/documents/activity-638-98.pdf (accessed on 20 June 2022).
- Whitehand, J.W.R., Gu, K., Whitehand, S.M., Zhang, J., 2011. Urban morphology and conservation in China. Cities, 28, 171-185. doi: 10.1016/j.cities.2010.12.001

Regenerating the existing The project of the complex Escuelas Pías de San Fernando in Madrid

Angela Benfante

University of Florence, benfante.angela@gmail.com

Keywords: regeneration, old and new, pre-existence

ABSTRACT

Regenerating takes place continuously in architecture and concerns not only the restoration or the renovation of buildings but also the construction of new ones, because the regeneration doesn't only affect the building itself but also the relationship with the context.

Acting on a place implies changing the relationships between the context and the building, this takes on greater importance when the context has a historical value, acting on it means establishing a new balance that doesn't completely alter the place and fits into it with coherence and continuity.

This constant relationship between the building and the context, between the totality and the fragment is the base of the design research of the architect Jose Ignazio Linazasoro who, between 1996 and 2004, realizes in Madrid in the Lavapies district, after winning an architectural competition, an intervention of regeneration of the complex of the Escuelas P as de San Fernando destroyed during the Spanish Civil War.

At the time of the competition the old complex presents itself as a ruin inside the historic center of Madrid; ruin that is part of the city, therefore intervening on it means intervening on the city.

The project deals with the theme of the relationship between new and old or of working with the pre-existing through the project. The intent of the architect Linazasoro is to renew the preexistence without changing the nature of the ruin, indeed, trying to enhance it.

The architect proposes not to reconstruct the ruin but seeks a dialogue between new and old by occupying the ruin, making sure that this is preserved in the collective memory.

The intervention involves the construction of a library inside the ruin and the construction of a new building near the pre-existence with university classrooms. The project provides the occupation of the ruin for a re-appropriation of the places in respect of the context.

The ruin is enhanced by the design and material choices of Linazasoro that pays particular attention to constructive and perceptual issues.

On the square, a brick wall, quardian of memory, is transformed into a lapidary and houses the fragments of the stone elements coming from the ruin itself.

Inside the library, the wooden roof allows to filter natural light and make it penetrate inside the space in a diffused and grazing way on the walls, enhancing the monumental proportions of the space.

It is the wise and balanced use of materials that defines the character of the entire project, measured and balanced.

The new university building expresses its construction system, but at the same time dialogues with the ruin enhancing its materiality: the new bricks are accosted to the old ones.

Thanks to the deep knowledge of the place and of the history, the architect was able to establish a continuous dialogue between existing and new. The project represents an example of sensitive design to the context capable of relating the old and the new in a balance way where one exalts the other without ever be in competition.

- Linazasoro, J. I.(1981), El proyecto clásico en arquitectura, Gustavo Gili, Barcellona.
- Linazasoro, J. I.(2002), La logica della costruzione, In Casabella 697, Mondadori.
- Linazasoro, J. I.(2004), Evocando la ruina. Sombras y Texturas. Centro Cultural en Lavapiés, Madrid. A. G. Grupo.
- Linazasoro, J. I., Pratesi S. (eds) (2012), Progettare e costruire, Casa dell'architettura, Latina.
- Linazasoro, J. I., Guarrera f. (eds) (2014), Saper credere in architettura: trentasette domande a Josè Ignacio Linazasoro, Clean, Napoli.
- Linazasoro, J. I.(2015), La memoria dell'ordine: paradossi dell'architettura moderna, Lettera Ventidue, Siracusa.
- Murua C. (2011), José Ignacio Linazasoro Complesso "Escuelas Pías de San Fernando" Madrid Spagna, In Costruire in Laterizio, 143, September-October.
- Samonà G., Canella G., Linazasoro J.I., Testi G. (eds) (1982), L'edificio pubblico per la città, Marsilio, Venezia.
- Ugolini A.(eds) (2010), *Ricomporre la rovina*, Alinea editrice, Firenze.

Increasing the public awareness about the importance of heritage

Besar Zifla

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, besar.zifla@fau.edu.al

Gjergj Ruci

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, gjergj.ruci@fau.edu.al

Keywords: identity; public awareness; heritage

ABSTRACT

Tirana sets in an ancient inhabited area, with a modern story that starts in 1614 with four public buildings: a mosque, a bakery, a bat (hamam) and a hotel (han). From the moment it was declared the capital of Albania (1920) till now, it has been transformed from a small centre of rural background, to a vibrant city developing year after year. Urban growth can be considered a major cause for Tirana's loss of build identity, while the existing urban morphology and intangible dimension constitute the last remains of its space singularity. The preservation of what remains, but also if its memory, is not possible without the people understanding its value, its immaterial quality that makes a bunch of houses feel like home.

By the review of previous works and actual designing experience this paper tries to understand the best ways of creating public awareness on this fading cultural heritage.

- Alexander C, Neis H, Anninou A, King I. (1987). A New Theory of Urban Design. New York: Oxford University Press.
- Ashworth G J, Graham B. (2005). Senses of Place: Senses of Time. London: Routledge.
- Batty M, Longley P. (1994). FRACTAL CITIES, A geometry of form and function. London: Academic Press Limited.
- Buonincontri P, Marasco A, Ramkissoon H. (2017). "Visitors' Experience, Place Attachment and Sustainable Behavior at Cultural Heritage Sites: A Conceptual Framework. Journal of Sustainability 9, no.7.
- Crompton J L, McKay S L. (1997). Motives of visitors attending festival events. *Annals of* Tourism Research, Vol 24, No 2.
- Frashëri, K. (2004). Historia e Tiranës. Tiranë.
- Hiller B, Hanson J. (1984). The Social Logic of Space. London: Cambridge University Press.
- Hopkins, R. (2011). The Transition Companion: Making Your Community More Resilient in Uncertain Times. London: Chelsea Green Publishing.
- Shimray, S. R. (2019). Ways to Create Awareness on Cultural Heritage: An overview. Library Philosophy and Practice, DigitalCommons@University of Nebraska -Lincoln.
- Shkreli, A. (2016). Zhvillimi i qytetit të Tiranës. Tiranë.
- Timothy D.J, Nyaupane G.P. (2009). Cultural Heritage and Tourism in the Developing World: A Regional Perspective. London: Routledge.
- UNESCO. (1983). Conventions and Recommendations of Unesco concerning the protection of the cultural heritage. Geneva: United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization.
- Yi-Ping, W. (2016). A Study on Kinmen Resident's Perception of Tourism Development and Culture Heritage Impact. Eurasia Journal of Mathematics, Science & Technology Education 12.

The Revitalization of city centres under the Renaissance program

Fiona Nepravishta

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, fionanepravishta@gmail.com

Florian Nepravishta

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, florian.nepravishta@fau.edu.al

Keywords: revitalization, inner-cities, urban development

ABSTRACT

As the world is continuously evolving, radical urban transformations have addressed the potential that cities have to develop and change for better by applying successful planning strategies and urban practices. Recently in Albania, many cities have become subject to major revitalization operations as part of a large national urban renaissance program. This government project will include the revitalization of around 70 cities, a chain investment towards sustainable urban development. The new added value of the cities will have multiple dimensions that will include physical, social, cultural and economic transformations by introducing cohesion and innovation. In such a scenario, by nurturing the distinctive urban identity of each of these cities, they will become catalysts of resilient economic growth with excellent opportunities for supporting tourism, as well as cultural and social vitality, while embracing their unique historiccultural assets.

Rehabilitation and revitalization are considered key approaches in this paper to provide the cities with spaces that meet people's needs and improve their livelihood. In such interventions that tend to revitalize the public space by creating conditions for a fruitful city capable of promoting innovation, a better quality of the urban environment and good economic development, some problems have been raised regarding the preservation of urban heritage and identity. Consequently, the conservation of identity becomes an important issue in sustaining the local characteristics of the cities, which has grasped major debates for the effectiveness of the recent urban developments.

The paper tends to explore and analyze some of the revitalization processes in some Albanian inner-cities and evaluate the efforts undertaken by public authorities and their outcomes. It contributes to the continual revalorization of cultures and identities by giving a better understanding of the challenges and potentials that these cities have. The revitalization process of each of the case studies is seen as an attempt to equip them for the challenges of globalization and environmental viability.

The paper concluded with some observations and recommendations regarding the preservation of urban heritage and identity of the inner-city.

- Adams, E., Arnkil, R. (2013) Cities of Tomorrow Action Today. URBACT II Capitalisation. Supporting urban youth through social innovation: stronger together, URBACT, Paris.
- Couch, C., Fraser, C., Percy, S. (2003). Urban Regeneration in Europe. Blackwell Publishing, Oxford.
- Paddison, R., McCann, E. (2014). Cities and Social Change: Encounters with Contemporary Urbanism. SAGE Publications, London.
- Roberts, P., Sykes, H. (2018). Urban Regeneration: A Handbook. SAGE Publications, London.
- Schwartz, P., (1996). The Art of the Long View-Planning for the Future in an Uncertain World. Currency-Doubleday, New York, NY.Van der Heijden, K.

Dialogue of real and digital models in Albanian architecture

Jonida Meniku

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Department of Restoration and Technology of Architecture, jonidameniku@yahoo.com

Keywords: real models, digital models, interventions, restoration

ABSTRACT

Every architect is obliged to think about the building before they construct it. Sooner or later, he will face the time factor of the building. They should be able to read the object in depth that requires an intervention, know how to read the text that they have to modify. They should reflect on the significance of the interference, the order, the legality, the costs and the copyright. The process of creating architectural 3d models for visualization sometimes show us a few challenges, mostly because of the shape of the project. In some cases, it's hard to construct in real life and in 3d as well. The question therefore, is can digital or real models underpin the architect's own design philosophy and experience? In this framework, some Albanian examples that characterize a prominent architectural identity, for benefiting professional preservation and restoration, are considered as Old Bazar in Tirana and Mozaik of Tirana. Is this dialogue actually happening, or is it necessary to propose a new conversation model? These interactions have recently been facilitated by the use of physical and digital production through an analysis methodology. In this perspective this research aims to identify relationships in some categories: directed production, non-directed production, dual modelling and mixed modelling. A review of different modelling classifications and frameworks are presented. Some case studies from the design domain are introduced for each category to illustrate them. This approach is exciting, challenging, and a relevant process in Albanian context. The perspective of this research is to formulate a conceptual framework, to ground further research on design tools, technology development and human - computer interaction in architectural design as the clear synthesis, as: symmetry, building facades, colors, space, and the meditation in the interior area. The objectives are:

Encouraging the academic elite, universities and cultural institutions.

Rising and reflecting for producing political and social responsibility through design tools and computer technology, as an assistive technology that would enhance the practice of architecture, which nowadays influence the development of preservation aspects.

- Adam. Tobias & Kuch (Eds.) Ulrike, Tirana, Architecture as Political Actor, Old Bazar, Tirana
- Billinghurst, Nouvel / HW Architecture, Tourre and Miguet (2010), Concurrent GeoM and Kato, H 2002, 'Collaborative augmented reality', Communications of the ACM - How the virtual in-spires the real 45(7), pp. 64-70.
- Eastman, C. M. (1999). Building product models: computer environments, supporting design and construction. CRC press.
- Eastman, C. M., Lividini, J., & Stoker, D. (1975). A database for designing large physical systems. Proceedings of the May 19-22, 1975, National Computer Conference and Exposition, 603-611.
- Frashëri, Kristo. Historia e Tiranës, Vëll.I, Botimet Toena 2004.
- Hysa. Armada: Kultura Popullore 1-2(2009), p. 150-161. Botimet albanologjike. Akademia e studimeve albanologjike.
- Imbert.Frédéric, Stutts Frost Kathryn, Ateliers Jean metric, Structural and Environmental Design: Louvre Abu Dhabi by Jean Nouvel
- Klaasen, IT 2002, 'Modelling reality' in T.T. de Jong and D.J.M. Van der Voort (eds), Ways to study and research Architectural, Urban and Technical Design, Delft Univer- sity Press, Netherlands.
- Luku. Esilda. Rivitalizimi i Mozaikut të Tiranës, Rëndësia e zhvillimit të turizmit kulturor në Tiranë

O3 IDEOLOGY, POLITICS AND ARCHITECTURE



The Cathedral And The Mouse - how does collective authorship change our sense of guilt -

Călin Dan

National Museum of Contemporary Art – MNAC Bucharest, mnacizvor@gmail.com

Keywords: collective authorship, Palace of Ceauşescu, MNAC

ABSTRACT

Living during the 1980s under the enormous political and economic pressure generated by the development of Nicolae Ceauşescu's project Casa Poporului, the author - an artist, writer and curator - is from 2014 the director of the Romanian National Museum of Contemporary Art (MNAC Bucharest), hosted in the very building that threatened his livelihood 35 years earlier. From this unexpected position, the author is looking at the circumstances defining the contemporary perception of an architecture and urban situation that are bearing for already half a century on the history and identity of Romania's capital city. Călin Dan's presentation will navigate through several projects he has developed during the last 20 years under the umbrella titles of "Emotional Architecture" and "Collective Authorship", suggesting methods of historical healing and urban exorcism - two operations highly necessary in post-communist Europe.

- Arendt, Hannah. The Origins of Totalitarianism. New York: A Harvest Book, 1976.
- Agamben, Giorgio. *Homo Sacer: Sovereign Power and Bare Life*. Stanford University Press, 1998.
- Bröckling, Ulrich, Krasman Susanne, and Thomas Lemke. *Governmentality. Current Issues and Future Challenges*. New York: Routledge, 2011.
- Foucault, Michel. *Territoire, sécurité, population. Cours au Collège de France*, 1977-1978. Paris: Gallimard/Seuil, 2004.
- Foucault, Michel. *Naissance de la biopolitique*. *Cours au Collège de France*, 1978-79. Paris: Gallimard/Seuil, 2004.
- Ioan, Augustin. "The History of Nothing: Contemporary Architecture and Public Space in Romania."
- losa, loana. L'héritage urbain de Ceausescu: fardeau ou saut en avant? Le centre civique de Bucarest. Paris: L'Harmattan, 2006.
- Jugurică, Constantin. *Memoria carnetelor cu însemnări. Bucureștiul cutremurat 1977-1989*. Bucharest: Arhilibra, 2012.
- Tulbure, Irina. "The Romanian City and Its Center: A Recent History Perspective". In *Shrinking Cities in Romania*, (Bucharest/Berlin: MNAC/DOM Publishers).

Neonationalist architecture in Albania. A postsocialist syndrome

Gjergji Islami

Polytechnic Unviersity of Tirana, gjergjislami@upt.al

Denada Veizaj

Polytechnic University of Tirana, denada.veizaj@fau.edu.al

Keywords: national architecture, ideology, socialism

ABSTRACT

"Socialist in content and National in form" was the slogan that guided art and architecture in Albania, especially in the last 15 years of the communist regime. The official demand for an ideological background has apparently shaped not only the professional preparation of artists and architects, but also the public's expectation and the overall understanding of the disciplines. In architecture, well known cases like the Skanderbeg Museum in Kruja, the National Museum of History in Tirana, and the Vukpalaj Railway Station design, can be listed as outstanding examples of such ideology influenced output.

In post-socialist countries, nationalist attitudes transmitted through architecture have been noticed to be an efficient public communication tool, a way to justify questionable interventions, or a medium to materialize political agendas (the case of Skopje). What seems to be unusual in Albania is the attitude of foreign starchitects, who authored some of the most striking designs that rely on a populist aesthetics recalling national references. This attitude seems to have unofficial political support by being promoted and perhaps even being demanded.

In this paper, following what the authors have previously called neocolonial architecture, we will explore the revival of some features of socialist architecture through the latest proposals of foreign architects. Neo-socialism or Neo-nationalism in architecture seems to be so only formally, because the content is principally represented by capitalist developments with large financial interests in areas with high public impact or sensitivity. An analytical study, based on case studies, will be conducted on the identified projects, by looking at the chronological progression of this trend and highlighting the official position of the designers.

The results of this analytical and contextual research will help to raise arguments on the dilemma: Are these designs a neo-nationalist trend in architecture powered by the cultural traces of socialism and their political use? Or are they a variation on the theme of duck architecture?

- Cohen, J.L., (2012). The future of architecture, since 1889. London; New York: Phaidon.
- Cvitković, S., & Kline, M., (2017). Skopje: Rebranding the Capital City through Architecture and Monuments to Remake the Nation Brand. *Sociologija i prostor*, *55(207)*, 33-53.
- Debord, G. (1995). The Society of the Spectacle. New York: Zone Books.
- Hoxha, E., (1987). Muzeu duhet të ketë tërësisht karakteri kombëtar. In Instituti i Studimeve Marksiste-Leniniste, *Vepra 63* (pp 338-341). Tirana: 8 Nëntori.
- Islami, G., & Veizaj, D., (2019). Und welche Rolle spielen albanische Architekten?. Bauwelt, 3, 40-43
- Islami, G., Veizaj, D., Thomai, G., & Fontanari, E. (2019). *Under pressure: facts of socialist architecture in Albania*. Tirana, Albania: Botimet Flesh.
- Jencks, C. (2010). The Post-Modern Reader. (2nd ed.). Wiley.
- Lasansky, D.M., & McLaren, B., (2004). *Architecture and Tourism. Perception, Performance and Place.* New York, USA: Berg.
- Veizaj, D., Islami, G., & Thomai, G. (2016). Stacionet. Vështrim tipologjik mbi arkitekturën shqiptare 1945-1990. Tirana, Albania: Botimet Flesh.
- Venturi, R., Scott Brown, D. & Izenour, S. (1977). *Learning from Las Vegas*. Cambridge MA: MIT Press.

The Recycling of National Myths in Architecture: Buda Castle in the long 20th-century

Orsolya Anna Sudár

Central European University, sudar_orsolya@phd.ceu.edu

Keywords: nationalism, myths, architecture

ABSTRACT

The framework of this paper departs from the investigation of the contemporary "reconstruction" phenomenon" in the East-Central European region, with special focus on the Buda Castle in Budapest, Hungary. Following the investigative trajectory of researching for my own research, my main argument is that one cannot make full sense of today's reconstruction projects without understanding the nation-building mythologies of the late-19th century, as it is often the used and abused historical reference point. The first part of the paper highlights some of the underlying political narratives of nationhood in the region, which are meant to be based on difference (identity); while exploring the paradox that the form-language of nationalism is often based on the globalist imperial architecture of historicism and classicism in the region.

The second part of the paper serves to give a historical context to the architectural trends listed in the first part. This subchapter investigates how specific historical and political moments influenced established architectural trends and the national form. Following the reconstruction timeline of the Buda Castle, I demonstrate that the Ybl-Hauszmann reconstructions were a belated gesture to validate the Compromise, to strengthen the symbolic power of Austria while also keeping alive the myth of national sovereignty in a pacificatory attempt. This subchapter will also deliver the historiographical changes in the perception of the Compromise. The two, shorter following subchapters will expand two significant aspects of 20th-century national identity-making: that of the Gründerzeit and its impact on the big cities of Austria-Hungary (especially unified Budapest), and that of the Eastern origin myths of Hungarians that largely influenced vernacular and Secession architecture.

- Anderson, B. R. O. (1991). *Imagined Communities: Reflections on the origin and spread of nationalism* (Rev. and extended ed., 2nd ed). Verso.
- Bibó, I. Válogatott tanulmányok I-IV. /. (n.d.). [Text]. Retrieved December 8, 2020, from http://mek.niif.hu/02000/02043/html/350.html#354
- Erdősi, P. (2006). Barokk és neobarokk. Korall, 23, 155-185.
- Gellner, E. (1983). Nations and nationalism. Blackwell.
- Gyáni, G. (2004). *Identity and the urban experience: Fin-de-siécle Budapest*. Social Science Monographs.
- Harvey, D. (2003). Paris, capital of modernity. Routledge.
- Hobsbawm, E. J. (1992). *Nations and nationalism since 1780: Programme, myth, reality* (2nd Canto ed). Cambridge University Press.
- Hobsbawm, E. J., & Ranger, T. O. (Eds.). (2010). *The invention of tradition* (19th pr). Cambridge Univ. Pr.
- Németh, L. (1989). Art, Nationalism, and the Fin de Siecle. In G. Éri & Z. O. Jobbágyi (Eds.), *A golden age: Art and society in Hungary, 1896-1914* (pp. 47-60). Center for the Fine Arts.
- Smith, A. D. (1983). Theories of nationalism (2nd ed). Holmes & Meier.

Prefabricated structures and minimal houses in Italy and Albania during the fascist period: the "casette Pater"

Riccardo Serraglio

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", riccardo.serraglio@unicampania.it

Danila Jacazzi

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", danila.jacazzi@unicampania.it

Keywords: prefabrication, autarky, foundation villages

ABSTRACT

During the fascist period, between the 1930s and 1940s, numerous foundation villages were built in Italy and in the Italian colonies, mainly for agricultural workers immigrating to new rural areas reclaimed through the draining of wetlands. In this period architects and urban planners studied different types of settlement suitable for different local environmental conditions, both in Italy and abroad. To make possible the rapid construction of new low-cost settlements in countries where building materials and skilled labour were lacking, it was decided to encourage the import of prefabricated building elements from Italy.

In particular, in Albania in the fascist era, in addition to the urban transformation of the centre of the capital, the Italian government built in the suburb of Tirana a village with 500 houses for Italian families. The settlement took the name of "village Pater" from the company of the Swiss engineer Dario Pater, personal friend of Benito Mussolini who produced in Italy prefabricated buildings using autarchic materials. The "Pater Houses", were two-family houses on a single floor, composed of a supporting structure of uprights and wooden beams, walls formed by panels of "Patercemento" (straw and wood chips pressed and bonded with cement mortar), pitched roofs covered with tiles. In Italy, the company Pater Costruzioni Edili Speciali of Milan, specialized in the construction of minimal houses and prefabricated structures, had realized with the same technique the popular neighborhoods for large families in the districts of Acilia and San Basilio in Rome and in the small town of Ronchi dei Legionari in Friuli Venezia-Giulia. The Pater prefabrication system presented serious structural problems, which required the consolidation of the buildings shortly after the completion of their construction. The neighborhoods of the "casette Pater", composed of small housing units, they represent an interesting testimony on the research of new construction systems in the period of the fascist government.

- Capolino, P. (2011), Tirana (1923-1943). Architettura del Moderno. Roma: Prospettive Edizioni.
- Giusti, M.A. (2006), Albania, architettura e città 1925-1943. Firenze: Maschietto Editore.
- Godoli, E., & Tramonti, U. (2012), Architetti e Ingegneri italiani in Albania. Firenze: Edifir.
- Gresleri, G. (2009), Albania: una dimensione sospesa tra opere pubbliche e rifondazione delle città. In G. Gresleri e P. G. Massaretti (Eds) Architettura Italiana d'Oltremare. Atlante iconografico. Bologna: Bononia University Press.
- Menghini, A.B. (2019), Architetture Italiane del Novecento a Tirana. L'ex Circolo Italo-Albanese Skanderbeg, Bollettino del Centro di Studi per la Storia dell'Architettura, n.s., 3.
- Tampone, G. (2002), Strutture e costruzioni autarchiche di legno in Italia e Colonie. Caratteri e criteri di conservazione, Bollettino Ingegneri, 11 (13-12-2004).

A fragment of Prishtina city, through time and history

Teuta Jashari Kajtazi

University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina", teuta.kajtazi@uni-pr.edu

Rinë Zogiani

University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina", rina.zogiani@uni-pr.edu

Keywords: Cultural Heritage, Modernism, Identity

ABSTRACT

Pristina as a city has gone through different historical, political, developmental, architectural, and social stages. When addressing the history of the towns of Kosovo from the prism of urbanism and architecture inherited from the period of Ottoman rule and Serbian-Yugoslav rule from 1913-1945 and continuing further with a few aspects of the urban policies of socialist Yugoslavia, one can easily distinguish the overlaps, the destructions and the new urban fabric that would be established with the beginning of the era of modernism. These policies in the Kosovar environment were developed under the slogan of social reconstruction, "To destroy the old and build the new," in which cultural wrongdoing of the Government at the time was very much evident. In a word, the urban development of Prishtina and the modern architecture applied in the city had been subjected to a syncretization of all architectural styles.

The political development and urban development strategy from the 1960s to the 1990s, when Kosovo was part of the former Yugoslav Federation, was oriented towards the construction of roads and social/cultural buildings with a comprehensive character for the performance of the primary functions of housing and work without neglecting the cultural, artistic, and recreational. As a new political-social spirit, in addition to capital investments, which may still be partially functional, one can give importance to architecture and expression through architecture. The denominator of all the buildings- analyzed through observation, can be the style and the materials used. They tended to promote modernism, a new spirit, stripped of orientalism and inspired by the West and the Far East, to give a new identity. This new identity often seemed to have a dose of the country or an indicator with characteristic elements of the autonomy of that country or was expressly symbolic of a story that the building had to reflect or transmit - for the country and its population.

With these iconic structures built, an attempt was made to show and achieve greatness, which would serve, in addition to the primary function, as an accelerator of people, culture, art, and development and give its own economic, social, and cultural contribution. Various monuments such as libraries, theatres, warehouses, sports, recreational centers, administrative buildings, etc., have the common unifying element of concrete.

The intervention of politics, communist ideology, and destructive tendencies on the premises left their mark in Prishtina to the greatest extent, buildings which continue to stand as monuments even today, with truncated/reduced functions. Therefore, this research aims to give the interpretative dimension of the ideology and the current state of the city of Prishtina, including its cultural heritage on different (urban and city) scales.

References

Bonta J.P., (1979). Architecture and its Interpretation. New York, USA: Rizzoli international publications

Freeman B., (2018). Concrete Utopia. Places Journal, San Francisco, CA: Places Journal

Jashari Kajtazi T., Zogiani R., (2021). Harmonious architecture and adaptive reuse: Urban gastrolounge in Prishtina. Pollack Periodica. Vol.16, Issue.3, (pp.146-150): AK Journals

Jashari Kajtazi T., Basha Jakupi A., (2017). Interpretation of architectural identity through landmark architecture: The case of Prishtina, Kosovo from the 1970s to the 1980s. Frontiers of Architectural Research. Vol. 6, Issue. 4, Dec. 2017, (pp. 480-486): Higher Education Press Limited Company, Elsevier

Koetter. F, Rowe C., (1979). Collage City. Cambridge, MA, USA: MIT Press

Kultermann U., (1993). Architecture in the 20th Century. New York, USA: Van Nostrand Reinhold

Rossi A., (1982). The Architecture of the city. Cambridge, MA, USA: MIT Press,

Social Mobilization of Kosovo Albanians during the '90s and the Parallel city of Prishtina

Eliza Hoxha

University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina", Faculty of Architecture, eliza.hoxha@uni-pr.edu

Keywords: social movements, production of city, collective memory

ABSTRACT

For Kosovo Albanians, the abolition of Kosovo's Autonomy in 1989 translated into an employment, education and information ban. Following which, Albanians established parallel education and health care systems in their private homes, funded from the voluntary 3% income tax, primarily paid by diaspora Albanians. While incoming Serbs laid claim on the city, to the Albanians their homes became synonymous and a compensation of/for the city. Once the '90s hit, what the city center and public institutions had provided over the years to all people, for the Albanians fell apart and shrunk within private homes spread around city suburbs. Houses and homes turned into schools, restaurants, promotional venues, offices, art galleries and hospitals. This exchange and merger of the private with the public, of the opened with the closed, of privacy and transparency, influenced housing typologies on the one hand, and the cultural mentality on the other. Public space was claimed and/or utilized by Albanians only in the case of demonstrations against government injustice. Since the 90s constitute a vibrant period of social and cultural movements, this "document" raises the question: what was the relationship between space and society during mobilization and social movements?

In this paper, we will try to answer this question by examining:

- 1. How did social movement appear and what they had produced?
- 2. Spatial manifestation of social movements in the city of Prishtina
- 3. The guestion of right to the city for Albanians and parallelism as gateway
- 4. The house as a compensation for the city

- Andersen, A. (2002) Transforming Ethnic Nationalism the politics of ethno-nationalistic sentiments among the elite in Kosovo, www.aasmundandersen.net
- Castells, M. (1993) The city and the Grassroots A Cross Cultural Theory of Urban Social Movements, Published by Edward Arnold
- Dragaj, F. and Dragaj, M. (2017) Interview by the author, Hani i 2 Robertëve, September Prishtina,
- "Dodona's Decade" Monograph, published by Dukagjini, Peja, 2003
- Demi, A. (2016) Satellite Years, Published by Kosovo 2.0
- Howard, C. (2000) Civil Resistance in Kosovo, published by Pluto Press
- Hoxha, E. (2006) Prishtina Escape, Master thesis, Catholic University of Leuven, Belgium
- Jacobsson, K. (2014) Paper for presentation at the CBEES annual conference
- Koligi, H. (1995) Survival of the University of Prishtina 1991-1994, published by the University of Prishtina
- Kastrati, A. (2016) The Role of Education for Identity Formation Among Albanians and Serbs of Kosovo: the Application of the Difference-Blinded Approach for Establishing Citizenship Regime in a Multi-Cultural Society, European Journal of Social Sciences Education and Research Vol.6, No. 1
- Maliqi, Sh, (1997) Beyond the new art of Kosova, Text in catalogue: Exhibition Përtej, Center for Cultural Decontamination, Belgrade, https://shkelzenmaligi.wordpress. com/1997/06/01/54/
- Maliqi, A. (2017) Interview by the author, Club MM, September, Prishtina,
- Maliqi A. (2016) Growing Up between Politics and Music, Published by Kosovo 2.0
- ROOTES, C.A. (1990) Theory of Social Movements: (This is a slightly revised and corrected version of an article published in Philosophy and Social Action 16(4)
- Salihu, A. (2005) Postmodernism interpreted for Albanians, "The March towards the Future", published by "Gani Bobi" Center for Humanistic Studies, Prishtina
- Sahatçiu, V. Under Cultural Construction-Mired in Ambiguity https://vesasahatciu.wordpress. com/author/vesasahatciu/
- Theorizing beyond the right to the city, Environment and Planning A, forthcoming (Introduction for special issue on 'Cities and Social Movements')
- Uitermark. J,W. Nicholls and M. Loopmans (forthcoming) Cities and social movements.

THE ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND HISTORICAL TRACES AND THEIR INFLUENCE IN THE URBAN MORPHOLOGY



Gothenburg. Change, Transformation and Continuity

Per Cornell

University of Gothenburg, perelias.cornell@gmail.com

Keywords: Landscape, Sustainability, Aesthetics

ABSTRACT

By way of an example, Gothenburg in Sweden, the way landscape and built environment are created, transformed, and changed in a town heavily oriented at commercial and industrial activities will be discussed.

The town of Gothenburg was founded in 1621 by royal decree from the Swedish king. It was a very special project for being in Sweden at this time. First and foremost, it was given special trade privileges and exempted it from certain kinds of taxation; it became what we would term a "free zone for trade" in a way. Second, and also very importantly, it was supposed to be a fortified town, and supposed to play a key role in Swedish defence towards the Atlantic. The magnitude of the building project was tremendous for Sweden in this period. Thirdly, the town all form the beginning housed a substantial non-Swedish population, mainly international traders, artisans and the like: the scale of this was exceptional for Sweden in this period.

Already by the end of the 18th century, the military relevance of the town was of less relevance, and by end of the 19th century the gigantic fortification walls had been dismantled, with only minor elements still in place. The town expanded, and by end of the 19th century it became the second largest in population, which it still is. The population is still increasing. Today Gothenburg is the largest port in the Nordic countries, and houses several important factories, Volvo being perhaps the most important at present.

In general terms, the town authorities and the main entrepreneurs have showed little interest in preserving old landscapes or built environment in and around the town. At present there is an intense re-working of the town, with large-scale projects for new buildings in several parts of the town.

A set of variables will be briefly discussed in a brief exposé of the story of the built environment and the development of its landscape. Certain questions related to sustainability on one hand, and aesthetics on the other will be in focus. The particularities of the case will be addressed, looking at vulnerability and possibilities in a long-term perspective. At the same time, some of the more general and probably shared experiences will be discussed. Finally, the presentation will include some thoughts for the future, trying to address the difficulties of thinking the past, the present, and the future as interrelated in a generally open framework.

- Alin, Johan & Lars Hofstedt, 1913. Ur Göteborgs och dess omgivningars historia. Göteborg.
- Andersson, Bertil, 1996. Från fästningsstad till handelsstad 1619-1820. Göteborgs Historia. Näringsliv och samhällsutveckling, 1. Stockholm.
- Brenner, Robert. 1993. Merchants and Revolution. Commercial Change, Political Conflict, and London's Overseas Traders, 1550 - 1653. Princeton.
- Cornell, Per, Anna Nilsson, Lennart Palm & Cristina Rosén, 2018. A Scandinavian Town and its Hinterland. The case of Nya Lödöse. IJHA 22:186-202.
- Cornell, Per & Christina Rosén, 2018b. Tracing Other in 17th century Sweden. Facing Otherness in Early Modern Sweden. Travel, Migrations and Material Transformations 1500-1800 (Naum & Ekengren eds.). Woodbridge, ss. 5-25.
- Cornell, Per & Anna Nilsson, 2017. Utopia and Built Environment. Ennen ja nyt. Historian tietosanomat. Turku. http://www.ennenjanyt.net/2017/08/utopia-and-built-environment/
- Hallén, Per, Lilli Andè Aldman & Kent Olsson, 2013. Göteborgs hamn. Hamnens tre åldrar, Del I. Den första åldern: Tiden 1619-1862. Göteborgs universitet, Institutionen för ekonomi och samhälle, Ekonomisk historia, Göteborg.

Small scale vs large scale urban interventions, Tirana case

Juljan Veleshnja

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Department of Urbanism, juljan.veleshnja@gmail.com

Keywords: urban acupuncture, urban regeneration, public space

ABSTRACT

The urbanization process is irreversible, for this reason it is crucial to identify methods for urban development and regeneration that allow cities to grow, to adapt and to be resilient with recent conditions. Cities are complex organisms which needs continues strategic intervention in order to adapt them for the incessant transformation of people necessities.

Urban areas which aim higher liveability can be shaped by the strategic, small scale and quick intervention projects, this is based on several theories of urban acupuncture. Small scale urban interventions have been continuously practiced abroad contrasting the large-scale transforming projects. The small scale can be related with the urban acupuncture strategy that generally focuses in maximising the effects on a certain local spot trying to cause although the catalytic effect in the urban system, for further economic, cultural, social and environmental benefits.

This research aims to underline some important aspects of the urban acupuncture theory, and tries to identify how the theory can be implemented into a design framework, allowing it to become more open as a collaborative tool between public and the professionals. The basics in urban acupuncture theory lies on the specific urban spot, targeting mainly the abandoned spaces. The theory was pioneered by architect and urbanist, Manuel de Sola-Morales, as a theory for urban regeneration. Case studies from key figures in urban acupuncture such as Manuel de Sola Morales, Marco Casagrande and Jamie Lerner will be used to illustrate the theoretical and practical aspects of this research.

In order to identify sensitive spots to apply Urban Acupuncture strategies, exposed on the theoretical part, will be chosen Tirana city as a case study, to illustrate recommendations on how to contextualize misused urban spaces interventions. Tirana city with the late development has faced the urban sprawl dictated by initially spontaneous development, and lately formal urban interventions. This development gave birth to many problems on public places and emerge need for strategic interventions, aiming the liveability in the city. This research aims to rise the dialogue on Tirana city, in terms of urban acupuncture with the sight to suggest strategies to the sustainable planning and design to the misused and abandoned places within the urban texture. There will be a qualitative analysis of different public places in Tirana, the ones who have been transformed recently, and some others still abandoned and misused. The theoretical frame of urban acupuncture will serve to analyse if some cases of designed and transformed public places in Tirana, are acting as catalysator for further sustainable transformation in the surroundings, in a larger scale. Also will be given some strategies for the design process to some undeveloped areas of the city, a step-by-step process for applying minimal interventions in short terms for the small scale, but aiming the development of the city.

References

Casanova, H., & Hernandez, J. (2015). Public Space Acupuncture. Madrid: Actar; English edition.

Gehl, J. (2011). Life Between Buildings: Using Public Space. Washington DC: Island Press.

Gehl, J., & Svarre, B. (2013). How To Study Public Life. Washington DC: Island Press.

Lerner, J. (2014). Urban Acupuncture. Washington DC: Island Press.

Roberts, P., Sykes, H., & Granger, R. (2016). Urban Regeneration. Thousand Oaks: SAGE Publications Ltd.

The concept and the importance of social sustainability for contemporary architecture and the city

Françeska Delia

franceska.delia@yahoo.com

Keywords: social sustainability, contemporary architecture, sustainability history

ABSTRACT

This paper is focused on introducing and studying the importance of sustainability through overviews of the literature. The first objective of this research is defining social sustainability as the third pillar of sustainable design through analyzing the important indicators that affect it. On addition the study proceeds on analyzing the connection with urban sustainability and identifying the challenges that contemporary cities have today. These analyze lead to a suggestion made on two mayor scales that will improve the city and the neighborhood urban and social performance. These suggestions are addressed to architects and urban planners as guidelines for better comprehensive and responsible urban choices.

"Sustainability" is a buzzword in urban development in past decade. The concept of sustainable development was defined by World Commission on Environment and Development (WCED) as "a development that meets the needs of the present generation without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs" in 1987 (WCED, 1987). There are various studies made on the concept of sustainability but we still have a complex definition of the factors that affect it. Today's contemporary cities, are going throught constant changes based on social, urban even climatic factors.

From a research perspective, there has not been much convergence in literature on the scope or focus of the term social sustainability to date. This makes it difficult to state a universally accepted definition of what social sustainability is, since the angle of which human-related problem to solve often determines the scope. (Berlin & Adams, 2017) Social sustainability could be defined as such a kind of progress that entails the harmonic development of local society, shapes such a surrounding that ensures that the various social groups, also those of different cultural origin, can live peacefully together; enhances their integration; and finally, improves the living conditions of all groups of citizens. Social sustainability is reflected in the easing of inequalities and social cleavages (Enyedi 2002)

If we were to analyze the challenges of modern cities, we will definitely face the problem of rapid city expansion and the raise of population, especially on the countries that are during constant political and economical transition like the case of Albania. Expansion of the cities, the high density of the neighborhoods brings the necessity of the new urban approaches. On a smaller scale, these new neighborhoods (now with a higher\intensive density) have a diverse population that comes with different cultural backgrounds, social and physical needs and different age gaps. These challenges combined give the designers and the government a sense of responsibility and a clearer vision how their decisions should be made.

- Bacon. N., Cochrane, D., & Woodcraft, S. (2012). Creating strong communities: How to measure the social sustainability of new housing developments: Developing the framework. The Berkley Group. London
- Berlin, C., & Adams, C. (2017). Production Ergonomics: Designing Work Systems to Support Optimal Human Performance. Ubiquity Press London
- Colantino, A. (2010). Urban social sustainability theme and assessment methods. *Proceeding of the Institution of Civil Engineers: Urban Design and Planning*, 163 (2), 79-88.
- Enyedi, G. (2002). Social sustainability of large cities. Defining Success of The City In The 21St Century, 69,142-144.
- Mehan, A., & Soflaei, F. (2017). Social sustainability in urban context: Concepts, definitions, and principles, *Architectural Research Addressing Societal Challenges*, Taylor & Francis Group
- World Commission on Environment and Development (1987). Our common future.UK: Oxford University Press.

Conservation of Heritage Buildings in the Bilisht Bazaar

Viola Ilia

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, vjolailia2@gmail.com

Keywords: Small Towns, architectural heritage, restoration, revitalisation, conservation

ABSTRACT

Building heritage preservation is a priority and is very important in the context of issues concerning small urban centres. Heritage buildings are associated with emotional, cultural, and use values, and they provide a connection with the past and are very important for their aesthetic and symbolic values. Many historical inner cities in Albania have been put at risk because of degradation and misuse. Former Bilishti Bazaar, part of the urban and architectural heritage of the first half of the 18th century, is in a degraded state and urgently needs conservation and revitalisation.

The focus of the paper is to clarify the mechanisms related to the concept of the conservation policy and practice in small urban centres and the way of restoration and revitalisation interventions of its built heritage. This paper discusses three heritage buildings that are wellknown representative samples of architectural heritage and identity in the Bilisht inner city as case studies.

The methodology used consists of the study and evaluation of the conservation policy used in the restoration processes of the three projects, which is followed by an analytical method based on a detailed survey of historic objects and the evidence of different pathologies to enable obtaining necessary measures to prevent further degradation of the objects under study. Proposing contemporary conservation strategies by recommending the best methods of restoration and preservation interventions so that the heritage buildings achieve renewal, static stability and evidence of historical, architectural, and community use values.

This paper concludes with some recommendations on effective conservation treatments to prevent further mishandling, distortion and deterioration of heritage buildings. Besides, the challenges and problems facing conservation policy revitalisation of this heritage must be addressed. It concludes that the restoration and revitalisation of degraded historical buildings would serve as a relevant and practical experience that can be applied to preserving urban historical memory.

- Ashworth, G.J. & Larkham, P.J. (1994). Building a new Heritage: Tourism, culture and identity in the new Europe. New York: Routledge.
- Bernard, F. 2003. *Conservation of Historic Buildings*. Third edition, Architectural Press, Linacre House, Jordan Hill, Oxford OX2 8DP, 200 Wheeler Road, Burlington.
- Laura Elisabetta Malighetti (2004). *Recupero edilizio e sostenibilita*. Collana a cura di Giuseppe Turchini. Il sole 24 Ore S.p.A., 2004.
- Marieke Kuipers; Wessel de Jonge (2017). *Designing from Heritage. Strategies for Conservation and Conversion*. TU Delft Heritage & Architecture, 2017.
- Meksi, A. (2004). Restaurimi i Monumenteve të Arkitekturës. Shtëpia Botuese UEGEN, 2004.
- Thomo, P. (2022). Korça urbanistika dhe arkitektura. Botim i tretë. Shtëpia Botuese Berk, 2022.

CONSERVATION OF THE CULTURE; ARCHAEOLOGY, RESTORATION, REGENERATION AND DOCUMENTATION



Heritage in the church attics - aspects, actions, and accessibility

Liisa Seppänen

Helsinki University, liisa.h.seppanen@helsinki.fi

Panu Savolainen

Aalto University, panu.savolainen@aalto.fi

Keywords: church heritage, documentation, Middle Ages

ABSTRACT

The oldest still standing buildings in Finland are stone churches and a few castles from the Middle Ages located mainly in the southern part of the country. While the castles are either functioning as museums or visible as monumental ruins in the protected landscapes, the churches are still in active congregational and cultural use all year round or at least in summer.

In Finland, the construction of masonry churches was an intimate part of the Swedish church building project and tradition since the western part of Finland was part of Sweden (Eastland of Sweden) and thus a part of the Catholic Church at that time. Here, the construction period of the medieval stone churches extended from the end of the 13th century to the mid 16th century. The architecture of the churches is a local variation of Baltic backsteingotik but the main building material is Greystone. Because of late urbanization of Finland, these churches are located in rural settings and the majority of them have no more surrounding villages around.

Since the 1870s, the medieval churches in Finland have been valued as important cultural heritage. However, minor focus has been directed to wooden constructions in the attics constituting the last and only testimony of still standing and functioning wooden constructions from the Middle Ages in Finland. The recent fires of Finnish churches as well as the famous Notre-Dame fire in 2019 have reminded us how important it is to make surveys and studies and document the remaining wooden heritage before it is too late.

In this paper, we are presenting our ongoing research project in which we are combining archaeological, architectural, historical, and engineering methods in documenting, analysing, and interpreting the wooden roof constructions and cultural heritage concealed in medieval church attics in Finland.

Church attics and roof constructions (as well as other attics of different buildings) contain and demonstrate both tangible and intangible heritage by manifesting the expertise and craftsmanship of the time, engineering and woodworking skills, emergence and existence of professional networks, transition of know-how and adoption of innovations. Furthermore, we investigate how the attics were used and viewed at different times and aim at making their heritage visible and accessible for wider audience through documentation and multifarious dissemination. One doctoral research of the project examines the use of energy resources and forestry through simulations and GIS analysis.

The results of the project will expand our understanding of the mobility of architectural innovations ja craftsmanship in the fringe areas of late medieval Europe. The new information related to the heritage aspects of these structures will be included to the existing status of the churches according to the Antiquities act of Finland. Furthermore, the project underlines the importance of wooden parts of masonry architecture, which have been in minor or even invisible role in the protection of the oldest built heritage of Finland.

- Eberhardt, S. & Pospisil, M (2021). E-P Heritage Value Assessment Method Proposed Methodology for Assessing Heritage Value of Load-Bearing Structures. *International Journal of Architectural Heritage*, DOI: 10.1080/15583058.2021.1901160
- Gullbrandsson, R. (2021), *Mellan himmel och rum. Kunskapsläget on medeltida taklag isvenska kyrkor 2020.* Sweden: Göteborgs universitet, Västergötlands museum & Svenska kyrkan.
- Hiekkanen, M. (1995), Takstolar i Finlands medeltida stenkyrkor. Hikuin 22, 269-290.
- Hiekkanen, M. (2020). Finlands medeltida stenkyrkor. Stockholm, Sweden: Kungl. Vitterhets Historie och Antikvitets Akademien.
- Linscott, K. (2007). Bevarade takkonstruktioner i svenska medeltidskyrkor. Del 1: Rapport om kunskapsläget 2006. Göteborg, Sweden: Göteborgs Universitet.
- Savolainen P., Laine L., Wirkkala E., Saarinen L. & Huttunen, M. (2018). Documentary Archaeology of an Early Modern Stone Church. A Case-study of the Old Church of Keminmaa. *SKAS* 2: 40-63.

Knowledge and archival documentation of monastic architecture

Angelo De Cicco

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, angelo.decicco@unicampania.it

Raffaela Fiorillo

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, raffaela.fiorillo@unicampania.it

Felicia Di Girolamo

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, felicia.digirolamo@unicampania.it

Keywords: monastic architecture, survey, documentation

ABSTRACT

The research deals with the study of historical documentation and the survey of the Franciscan Catholic monastery of Visovac, in central Dalmatia in Croatia, on the island of the same name in the natural lake formed by the river Krka. The Franciscan community established there, obeying the principles of poverty, built a monastery and church amidst the nature of the islet, uniting the landscape and the sacred building into an architectural and vegetational ensemble comparable to the one of the same name built on the island of Brac or of Our Lady on the island of Mljet.

The first documents relating to the foundation of the monastery can be traced back to the writings of the Augustinian Fathers in 1445, who abandoned the island of Visovac due to the invasion of the Turkish army. Subsequently, a group of Franciscan Friars from northern Croatia settled there and began artificially building the island's surface area, constructing the old part of the monastery cloister and the sixteen cells, which were used as living quarters by the friars themselves, in the 15th century. From 1648 to 1672, the Franciscan fathers were forced to abandon the religious site again, which was then razed to the ground by a devastating fire. The reconstruction can be dated to the first half of the 18th century.

The diagnostics of the intervention area, the study through aerial images of the examined site revealed an added value to the cultural heritage.

The objective of this contribution is to demonstrate how the adoption of aerial survey methodologies and photogrammetric restitution provide an interesting, as well as complete and detailed, archive documentation of the area and the built environment. Ryobi laser instrumentation applied on portable computer support, both tablet and smartphone, will be used, which allows an instantaneous view of the survey data on the photographic image taken from the support, transforming the latter into dynamic data. In addition, the research will benefit from the use of a quadrihelic drone for the survey of the building and the creation of point clouds obtained from the digital images through the use of photomodelling software that will produce a three-dimensional model of the entire island.

References

Barba S. & Cardone V. (2013). *Modelli grafici dell'architettura e del territorio*. Santarcangelo di Romagna: Maggioli.

Bertocci S. & Bini M. (2012). Manuale di rilievo architettonico urbano. Torino: Città studi edizioni.

Bianchini C. (2011). Rilievo Modellazione e Studio Geometrico delle Cupole. Roma: Edizioni PreProgetti.

Ducellier A. (1965). Observations sur quelques monuments de l'Albanie. Tirane.

Guter, J. (2008). I monasteri cristiani. Roma: Edizioni Arkeios.

Messina B. (2012) The domes of the Amalfi Coast: survey and digital representation of complex shapes. Firenze: Nardini Editore.

The knowledge of performance spaces

Rosa de Caro

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, rosa.decaro@unicampania.it

Angelo de Cicco

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, angelo.decicco@unicampania.it

Luigi Corniello

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, luigi.corniello@unicampania.it

Keywords: Theater, Architecture; Tirana

ABSTRACT

The research proposes the survey of the main theatres in Communist Albania, up to the end of the Communist regime. The study addresses the idealistic principles, inherited from the innovations of the early 1920, are based on the affirmation of a revolutionary art that refers to a new social dimension.

The issues of the First Congress of the Union of Soviet Architects in 1937, where the Architecture Code of "Socialist Realism" was drafted, whose aim was to bring artistic expression closer to the proletarian classes and celebrate socialist progress, are addressed. The architecture acquired forms from the past and traits from the classical language of the West.

Among the approximately 40 theatres identified as case studies, located in different Albanian cities, including Saranda, Vlora, Elbasan, the case study identified is the National Puppet Theatre, whose name today is National Children's Theatre.

The Theatre is located in the heart of Tirana, in Skanderberg Square, and was founded in 1950 by a group of actors, its importance is significant, as the building has also had political functions. Inside, important events in Albanian history took place, as it housed the seat of the Albanian Parliament before World War II.

It was designed by Austrian architects, but construction was completed in 1925, as from 1925 to 1944, it was used as the seat of Parliament.

In 1944, with the arrival of the Communist regime in power, the building housed the headquarters of the Anti-Fascist Committee and was later used as the Soviet Pioneer House.

After maintenance, extension and adaptation work in 1950, a 160 seat hall was built.

Today, the theatre is inaccessible as there is ongoing maintenance work after the disastrous earthquake of 2019 that caused countless damages to the building's structural system.

- Findley, Lisa (2005) "Building Change: Architecture, Politics and Cultural Agency", London: Routledge;
- Islami, G., Ruci, G. (2012) "Instruments and Methodologies for Cultural Heritage Conservation and Valorization", editrice Gabbiano srl.
- Isto, Raino (2015) "A Style and a Half or Half a Style? Modernism, Socialist Realism, and Postmodernism in Albanian Art" Afterart: a blog about art and socialism, 9.1.2015;
- Karaiskaj Gj., (2007). "Monumentet", Instituti i Monumenteve të Kulturës.
- Llubani A., Thomai G., et.al. (2021) "Kinemate Dhe Teatrot Cinemas And Theaters, Projekte Architektonike ne Shqiperine Komuniste (1945-1990) Architectural Project in Communist Albania (1945-1900)".
- Riegl, Alois (2011) "Il culto moderno dei monumenti. Il suo carattere e i suoi inizi", a cura di S. Scarrocchia, Abscondita, Milano;

Fortified architectures in Eastern Greece

Luigi Corniello

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, luigi.corniello@unicampania.it

Raffaela Fiorillo

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, raffaela.fiorillo@unicampania.it

Gennaro Pio Lento

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, gennaropio.lento@unicampania.it

Keywords: Survey, Knowledge, Modeling

ABSTRACT

This study deals with the theories and processes for the understanding and realisation of images related to digital surveys and models of architectural artefacts of great historical value. The use of technologies such as terrestrial and aerial photogrammetry support the realisation of surveys based on iconographies and views of places and architecture.

The instrument of the image, in addition to representing the mere function of documenting architecture, is conceived as a culture of language internalised by the user through thought, the cognitive process for determining the perceived space.

The present work, therefore, proposes to document and graphically recon-struct through images, the temporal evolution of the fortress of Christoupolis in the city of Kavala, in eastern Greece, with a series of digital drawings, but above all with 3D photogrammetric modelling systems of the external spaces. The few bibliographic and iconographic sources represented the cognitive support for the realisation, in the summer of 2020, of point clouds developed with the assistance of a quadrihelix drone. This survey was finalised for the survey and digital modelling of the walls, the tower and the minor buildings still preserved today.

The new technologies, applied to the knowledge of the basic geometry, become a tool for analysis, information and restitution through the images of the fortress of Christoupolis. In the illustrated graphic context, the drawing of architecture, that is the practice oriented to model the object as a form, covers the main critical and theoretical exercise of method for digital technologies, defining the questions of geometric nature necessary for the creation of virtual images.

The outcomes of the research intends to demonstrate how the perception of images can influence surveying practices and how the contribution of technologies determines an aseptic vision of architecture and landscape.

- Amoruso, G., Apollonio, F., I., Remondino, F. (2010) Caratterizzazione strumentale di sensori attivi a tempo di volo e a triangolazione. Utilizzo di laser scanner su superfici marmoree di epoca romana, Pisa: Scuola Normale di Pisa.
- Apollonio, F., I. (2010) La modellazione digitale. Bologna: Clueb.
- Barba, S., Cardone, V. (2013) Modelli grafici dell'architettura e del territorio. Santarcangelo di Romagna: Maggioli.
- Remondino, F. (2011) Rilievo e modellazione 3D di siti e architetture complesse, in DisegnareCon, dicembre 2011.

Structures for the storage of goods in the Piraeus harbour

Enrico Mirra

University of Campania Luigi Vanvitelli, enrico.mirra@unicampania.it

Keywords: restoration, valorization, harbour warehouse

ABSTRACT

Harbour areas have constituted an extraordinary historical public space, not only because of their centrality and the presence of commercial traffic, but also because of the strong sense of social belonging that these places aroused in the population. The present research focuses on precisely such areas, which are only apparently liminal, concentrating on a ruined warehouse in the region of Kantharos in the Piraeus harbour. Thanks to the expansion of industrial technology, these areas have experienced constant changes for centuries, creating barriers or moving away from urban centres. Their forms, their evolutions, their relationship with the coastline, their nature as public space as an extension of the city on the water, define the character of social places, which today have unfortunately become closed enclosures of separation. In the New Athens Charter (ECTP-CEU, 2003) the European Council of Spatial Planners attempted to identify the underlying problem of existing cities, especially harbour cities. The case study warehouse is an industrial building with a reinforced concrete load-bearing structure, built in the period between 1934-1936. It has a trapezoidal shape and its front are made by alternating plastered elements in correspondence with load-bearing structures and curtain walling elements made of rows of face brick. The lighting of the interior spaces is ensured by means of strip windows that run along the entire perimeter with interruptions only at the structural elements. Metal elements such as gratings, gates, and emergency staircases specially designed for the use it had during its operation complete the building. In the cognitive investigation, the in-depth knowledge of the artefact must be an indispensable premise to arrive at the elaboration, in the most correct way possible, of the restoration project, both at the level of theoretical orientations and operational interventions, thus reducing the risks of arbitrariness in the design sphere. The survey, a primordial operation, most often implies, in addition to the definition of its forms and dimensions, the ascertainment of structures and compositional materials. The approach to the restoration project therefore takes place through the analysis of degradation, a necessary investigation for a correct formulation of the pathological picture. The research and elaborations carried out in this study, represent the starting point towards a shared collective heritage such as to be able to arrest the state of abandonment of an architectural testimony of great value. In this perspective, the role of the discipline of restoration is indispensable for the correct valorization of cultural heritage, presupposing first and foremost its protection, which lies in its recognition, conservation and protection. A cognitive path elaborated in order to prove the link between survey, diagnosis and restoration project within a unitary reading capable of bringing out the specific identity features of the port complex that, at present, are tarnished.

- Caccia, S. (2012). Tutela e restauro delle stazioni di servizio. Milano: Franco Angeli
- Caccia, S. (2009). Architettura in movimento/Architecture in motion. Stazioni di servizio e distributori di carburante: un patrimonio da salvare. Pisa: Ets
- Della Torre, S. (1996). Storia delle tecniche murarie e tutela del patrimonio. Esperienze e questioni di metodo, Milano
- Giglio, A. (2011). Il magazzino 26 di Trieste. Documenti di un restauro. Trieste: Lint Editoriale
- Heatherington, C. (2020). Reimagining Industrial Sites: Changing Histories and Landscapes. Londra: Routledge.
- Landi, S. (2022). Grain silos from the thirties in Italy. Analysis, conservation and adaptive reuse. Pisa: University press
- Musso, E. (1996). Città portuali: l'economia e il territorio. Milano: Franco Angeli.
- Romeo, E. M. G. (2004). Il monumento e la sua conservazione. Torino: Celid edizioni.
- Romagnoli, A. (2003). L'Autorità portuale: profili strutturali e funzioni. Bologna: Bonomo editrice.
- Russo, M., Miano, P. (2014). Città tra terra e acqua. Napoli: Clean edizioni.

Surveys from the sea. Experiences in the Chalkidiki Peninsula

Gennaro Pio Lento

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, gennaropio.lento@unicampania.it

Angelo De Cicco

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, angelo.decicco@unicampania.it

Fabiana Guerriero

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, fabiana.guerriero@unicampania.it

Rosa De Caro

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, rosa.decaro@unicampania.it

Luigi Corniello

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, luigi.corniello@unicampania.it

Keywords: Photogrammetry, Technologies, Monasteries

ABSTRACT

The contribution presents the results of the architectural survey campaigns conducted in July and August 2020 along the western coastal strip of the Mount Athos peninsula, an autonomous territory within the Hellenic Republic but with a special self-governing statute, located at the last of the three peninsulas of the region called Chalkidiki.

The current bibliographic documentation, most of which focuses on a historical and artistic description of the paintings in the monasteries and the travel notes of visitors who have climbed their peaks and steep paths, is limited in its graphic documentation and surveys of the architectural volumes.

Many famous travellers (architects, philosophers, writers, directors) have drawn inspiration for their works from the slopes of the Holy Mountain: the Umberto Eco novel "The Name of the Rose" was inspired by his journey to Athos. Le Corbusier also visited the Mount and some references can be found in his 1960 work, the Catholic Monastery of Tourette in Lyon, France, whose structure can be compared to the monastic complex of Dionisiou.

Over the centuries, the monastic community of Athos, dedicated to the hermit life, has preserved the social traditions of the approximately 1500 Orthodox monks and the architectural geometry of the community buildings, churches, service facilities, dormitories and solitary cells.

The investigations conducted have analysed, through innovative technologies, the codes, the languages for understanding architecture, the spaces, the distances between the phases of

graphic knowledge of the artefacts, and the processes, the phases used in the application of the technologies in the survey campaigns. Of great interest is the operational process illustrated both on the basis of the problems that emerged and the solutions adopted in the knowledge phases.

The research exposes, for the first time, the unpublished instrumental surveys carried out in the Athos community, which for centuries has been denied access to scholars, tourists and the curious.

The instrumental survey activities, carried out with the aid of quadrihelix drones and terrestrial photogrammetry, concerned the western part of the third Chalkidiki peninsula, namely the Monastery of St. Dionysius, the Monastery of Xeropothemus, the Monastery of Zographos, the Monastery of Dochiario, the Monastery of Simonpetra, the Monastery of St. Paul, the Monastery of Xenophon, the Monastery of St. Gregory, the Monastery of St. Pantaleimon and the Monastery of Costamonita. A knowledge of architectural languages analysed through innovative surveying technologies to cancel the distances between man and knowledge.

- Burridge, P. (1996). Architectural development of the Athonite Monastery. In Mount Athos and Byzantine Monasticism. Brookfeld: Ashgate Publishing Company.
- Capuani, M. (1988). Monte Athos. Baluardo monastico del Cristianesimo orientale. Novara: Europìa.
- Capuani, M. (1997). Il patrimonio artistico. In Athos, le fondazioni monastiche, un millennio di spiritualità e arte ortodossa. Milano: Jaca Book.
- Crisan N. (2016) Athos. The Holy Mountain. Suceava: Accent Print.
- Della Valle, M. (2007). Costantinopoli e il suo impero. Arte, architettura, urbanistica nel millennio bizantino. Milano: Jaca Book.
- Farides C. (2010). Monte Santo. Il giardino della Madonna. Salonicco: Rekos.
- Manfredini, A., M., Remondino, F. (2010). Modellazione 3D da immagini. Pipeline fotogrammetrica. Pisa: Scuola Normale di Pisa.
- Muresu M. (2014). Architettura sacra mediobizantina dal Monte Athos (Grecia), il caso di Ravdouchos. In ArcheoArte, n 3.
- Pentzikis, G. N. (2003) Mount Athos. Athens: print
- Trumler G. (2009). Athos. L'orto della Madonna. Peania: Adam Editions.

Networks for the Enhancement of Adriatic Harbour Warehouse

Enrico Mirra

University of Campania Luigi Vanvitelli, enrico.mirra@unicampania.it

Felicia Di Girolamo

University of Campania Luigi Vanvitelli, felicia.digirolamo@unicampania.it

Adriana Trematerra

University of Campania Luigi Vanvitelli, adriana.trematerra@unicampania.it

Keywords: conservation, protection, harbour warehouses

ABSTRACT

In recent years, cities have undergone radical morphological changes: the ways of crossing the urban network have changed and the concept of boundaries has progressively lost its meaning. This transformation has mainly affected the connections between cities and ports, which are defined by their relationship with the place, by the relations they establish with the orography and the landscape. The present contribution proposes some preliminary results of the analysis and documentation of port architecture on the Balkan Coast, as part of an investigation of great interest that is still little addressed in the international framework. Specifically, the research work focuses on the analysis and documentation of specific port architectures, such as structures connecting the sea and the urban hinterland, analysing the condition of abandonment and degradation of some types of reinforced concrete, built in the period between 1900 and 1950 in the ports of the Balkan coast from Slovenia to Turkey. The purpose of the investigation is to describe and represent the architectural heritage through a precise mapping, a path of knowledge capable of triggering reflections on the conservation and enhancement of the built heritage in order to protect the architectural value handed down over the centuries by different cultures. The long phase of methodological reflection has posed the problem of a recognition of the identity of these spaces, of the form and meaning of places. The action of restoration that affects the built environment, from the monument to the widespread cultural heritage, is increasingly configured as an action of requalification of the existing that is taking on very important economic reflections, expanding the meaning of protection as an indispensable factor of defence not only of monuments and works of art, but also of the identity of the territory and its resources. In this process of growth, leading figures in scientific culture, such as the great treatise writers of the 19^{th} and 20^{th} centuries who were able to shape and dictate the educational guidelines to be pursued, have made their fundamental contribution. In this scenario, the aim of this study is to prevent the loss of the documentary, research and educational values of the architectural heritage. It is therefore necessary to approach the research through a series

of investigations aimed at the valorisation, conservation and revaluation of port infrastructure systems that present themselves as a flywheel for the revitalisation of the European architectural heritage. The elaborations produced returned in digital form constitute a documentary source of great interest for the conservation of the built heritage.

References

Cardaci, A., Versaci, A. (2018). Rilievo e restauro: un binomio imprescindibile. Approcci metodologici e applicazioni operative finalizzate alla conoscenza e alla conservazione del patrimonio culturale. Roma: Aracne Editrice.

Casiello, S. (1990). Restauro, criteri metodi esperienze. Napoli: Electa.

Marino B., G. (2006). Restauro e autenticità. Nodi e questioni critiche. Napoli: Edizioni Scientifiche Italiane.

Musso, E. (1996). Città portuali: l'economia e il territorio. Milano: Franco Angeli.

Musso, S. F. (2017). Rilevare/Restaurare: una diade inscindibile. In Ananke Speciale Geores 2017, pp. 24-29.

Romeo, E. M. G. (2004). Il monumento e la sua conservazione. Torino: Celid edizioni.

Romagnoli, A. (2003). L'Autorità portuale: profili strutturali e funzioni. Bologna: Bonomo editrice.

Russo, M., Miano, P. (2014). Città tra terra e acqua. Napoli: Clean edizioni.

Urbani, G. (1973). Problemi di conservazione. Bologna: Compositori editrice.

Evolving heritage for an evolving city: the murals in the city of Pesaro and their conservation

Laura Baratin

University of Urbino, School of Conservation and Restoration, laura.baratin@uniurb.it

Francesca Gasparetto

University of Urbino, School of Conservation and Restoration, francesca.gasparetto@uniurb.it

Veronica Tronconi

University of Urbino, School of Conservation and Restoration, v.tronconi@campus.uniurb.it

Keywords: public art, documentation & conservation, contemporary cities

ABSTRACT

The current public interest in the expressive power of urban art is evidenced by the project of the Municipality of Pesaro and other associations operating in the territory, which have been commissioning and supporting the creation of murals in various places in the city, from 2006 until now. Within the contemporary city, the creation of public artworks of various kinds and bearing identity messages for the local population is not a new phenomenon: in the Italian context, experiments of this kind can be attested as early as 1968. However, even if citizens recognize these works as a common heritage, to the point of participating in their creation process together with the artists, there are almost no scientific projects for the documentation and conservation of public art in a long-term perspective, involving communities in the process.

The proposed project intends to enhance the work of the Administration and groups of artists and tell citizens what it means to take care of a contemporary and identity heritage, tailor-made for the community. The activities designed in a participatory form are aimed at the issues of digital documentation and conservation, to stimulate a collective awareness of the importance of protecting contemporary and evolving heritage within an evolving city, given that Pesaro will be the Italian capital of culture in 2024.

The project starts from the digital documentation mapping of the state of conservation for the existing artworks, to be geolocated between the city streets and placed along a timeline that will describe the evolution of a future widespread museum; for the paintings still to be created, a documentary protocol has been defined to support the artists in the scientific collection of information, with a view to constantly communicating the new artworks and their need for conservation.

The work is structured in three phases: the first of data collection by a staff of professionals who faced the technical characteristics of each work and interfaced with the artists; subsequently, in order to process and translate the technical data into informative information, various digital and social contents are and will be created; finally, the third phase will see the active participation of the community called to interface with the murals to monitor their state of conservation. Each work will be described according to a standard, technical and digital form, validated by the artist, to be used as a starting point for a reasoned and shared conservation. Thanks to the use of a web platform, accessible at various levels, each mural will be documented starting from its creation process, through an integrated work between professionals and citizens, thus describing the in-progress evolution of the city.

References

AA.VV. (2019). Kermes n. 109 - Dossier street art. LEXIS, ISSN 1122-3197.

- Baratin, L., & Gasparetto, F. (2020). La documentazione per una conservazione "sostenibile":come il digitale può integrare il lavoro dei restauratori. in Scicolone, G. (Ed.), *Nuovi polimeri per il restauro La sperimentazione MIUR/Smart cities* (pp. 151 176). Nardini Editore.
- Cadetti, A. (2020). Conservare la street art. Le problematiche del muralismo contemporaneo in Italia. Firenze: EDIFIR Collana di Storia e Teoria del Restauro.
- Di Luggo, A., & Zerlenga, O. (2020). *DISEGNARECON Vol. 13, No 24. Street art. Drawing on the walls.* Retrieved july 10, 2022, from https://disegnarecon.univaq.it/ojs/index.php/disegnarecon/issue/view/27.

Perelli, L. (2006). Public art. Arte, interazione e progetto urbano. FrancoAngeli Editore

Pioselli, A. (2015). L'arte nello spazio urbano. L'esperienza italiana dal 1968 ad oggi. Johan & Levi.

Preservation of architectural heritage vs modernity? Some experiences in the south of Albania

Mariacristina Giambruno

Politecnico di Milano, Dipartimento di Architettura e Studi Urbani, mariacristina.giambruno@polimi.it

Sonia Pistidda

Politecnico di Milano, Dipartimento di Architettura e Studi Urbani, sonia.pistidda@polimi.it

Keywords: Cultural heritage in the global challenges; heritage-based approach; Saranda and Delvina

ABSTRACT

The current complexity of the "cultural heritage" meaning makes it impossible to circumscribe it in one definition. In the past, the concept was static and closed due to the protection system of many countries.

On the contrary, today, we need to intend it as dynamic, changing, and inclusive. Its recognition has to be very rapid, given the speed of our society and the awareness of its uniqueness and irreproducibility is the first step towards its preservation.

This evolution was long and arduous but allowed, through an intense cultural debate, to consider the multiple facets of the term "heritage". In this way, many "heritages" have been included in the definition, enabling to extend infinitely this enlargement. We must consider that every society and every time attribute ever different "values" to the objects inherited from the past.

This minute, silent, and "discrete" heritage is fragile for many reasons. Often it is placed in marginal areas, made of poor materials, and it isn't easy to convert the use because it requires continuous maintenance.

The broadening of the concept of "heritage" has brought many issues. Above all, two are crucial: the modalities for its "recognition" and protection and the strategies for its "valorization". The ongoing discussion fosters the insertion of culture in the sustainable development goals, highlighting as a problem its scarce presence in the worldwide debate (see the campaign #Culture2030Goal). Also, a recent work by Icomos stresses a broader presence of heritage in the SDGs. Which can be the potential and specific contribution of heritage in the 2030 Agenda?

«The knowledge and resources transmitted through Heritage to achieve the well-being of People (SDGs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 11); a "Culture-Nature" approach and landscape-based solutions to achieve the well-being of the Planet (SDGs 6, 7, 11, 13, 14, 15); The shared resources embodied in Heritage to achieve Prosperity of communities (SDGs 5, 8, 9, 11, 12, 14); the connecting power of Heritage for social cohesion and dialogue to achieve Peace within and among societies (SDGs 10, 11, 16); and the shared medium of Heritage and its connections with all aspects of human life to create Partnerships (SDGs 11, 17) » (Labadi, Giliberto, et al., 2021). "Heritage: driver and enabler of sustainability" is the slogan adopted by Icomos.

The paper, starting with reflecting on the meanings of heritage and its role in contemporary society, intends to analyze some experiences conducted in Albania to study and valorize the architectural assets in Delvina and Saranda area. The study aims to understand what role architectural heritage can play in marginal areas or small towns and whether it represents an obstacle or a resource for modernity.

- Boriani. M., Giambruno, M., (Ed). (2015). Studi per la conservazione del patrimonio culturale albanese. Firenze: Altralinea.
- Boriani. M., Macchiarella, G., (ed). (2009). Albania e Adriatico meridionale. Studi per la conservazione del patrimonio culturale (2006-2008). Firenze: Altralinea.
- Giambruno, M., Pistidda, S., Gabaglio, R., (2018). Patrimonio Culturale e Paesi emergenti. Riflessioni per la conservazione a partire da alcuni casi studio. Firenze: Altralinea.
- Labadi, S., Giliberto, F., Rosetti, I., Shetabi, L., Yildirim, E. (2021). Heritage and the Sustainable Development Goals: Policy Guidance for Heritage and Development Actors. Paris: ICOMOS.

"A discourse on Cultural Heritage, Period 1919-39". The connection of the architectural models with the numerical models, through hBIM tools

Nikolla Vesho

Polis University, Department of Architecture and Engineering, nikolla.vesho@unife.it

Romir Mazari

National Institute for Cultural Heritage, Tiranë, romirmazari@gmail.com

Megi Sinani

Polis University, Department of Architecture, megi_sinani@universitetipolis.edu.al

Keywords: H-BIM tools, Architectural and Numerical models, Survey and digitalization

ABSTRACT

This study will focus on the context of Tirana's historic and cultural heritage, designed between the interwar period 1919-39. The building's stock represents a good occasion, specific in terms of combining Italian Architectural style with Albanian motives. The survival of the heritage of these buildings' structure may be possible through on-site observations, documentation, digitization, photogrammetry processing, subsequent numerical analysis through hBIM tools and the restoration/consolidation process.

This research focuses on the architectural survey process, which contributes to the enrichment of the 3D Architectural BIM model of the Building; then linking to the numerical model within the BIM environment; Finally, after the simulations, it is targeted to increase the accuracy of the consolidating and adaptive interventions of heritage objects. The application of numerical simulations for cultural heritage buildings brings a huge increase in complexity within BIM environment, and during this time few studies and researches focus on this issue, also, the problems of their calibrations and connections. The gap between the numerical simulation FEA and Building Information Modelling BIM-environment can be considered huge and is not yet fully-automated, this process relies partially on manual steps and the individual experience on this topic. One of the main goals is to treat the complicated 3D modelling of existing buildings of this period, using the building information modelling methodology as a tool that helps experts improve the methods of evaluation and parametric interaction. Regarding the proposals for intervention, it will be attempted through this logic, to work and research inside a controlled space monitored by experts, to minimize the damage of architectural assets during an intervention of restoration. This research requires to stimulate the process of digitalization by the creation of advanced 3D models with multidisciplinary information and data. Its focus is to create accessible database of materials and their mechanical parameters, building script

libraries on geometric shapes of elements and dimensions, combined architectural and mathematical models. Finally, after the simulations of scenarios, a parameterized database to provide well-thought-out proposals for intervention and retrofitting.

The current challenges show a huge number of problems that still affect the application of these researches, showing the demand for a precise set of data needed for analysis, and moving on to the lack of efficient connections between software within the BIM environment, without forgetting the methodological approaches. On the other hand, new opportunities can be found by making a scientific contribution to this started path, in the use of increasingly sophisticated technologies for the diagnosis of structural problems, the creation of a digital database map and the design of efficient solutions for the Cultural Heritage issue in Albania.

- Annals of the Photogrammetry, Remote Sensing and Spatial Information Sciences, Volume II-5/ W3, 2015 25th International CIPA Symposium 2015, 31 August - 04 September 2015, Taipei, Taiwan..
- Barazzetti, L., Fabrizio, B. (2016), Historic BIM in the Cloud. In SpringerLink, 104-15. Springer International Publishing. http://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-319-48496-9_9.
- Binda, L., Saisi, A. & Tiraboschi, A., (2000). Investigation Procedures for the Diagnosis of Historic Masonries. Construction and Building Materials, 14(4), pp. 199-233.
- Charleson, A., Vesho, N. & Marku, A. (2020). Structural Engineering Observations from the 26 November 2019 Mw 6.4 Albanian Earthquake. NZSEE-2020 Annual Conference Journal, link: https://repo.nzsee.org.nz/handle/nzsee/1752 Vol.17, Issue.5 pp. 191-200.
- Clarke, J. & Hensen, J. L. M. (2015) Integrated Building Performance Simulation: Progress, Prospects and Requirements. Building and Environment: 294-306. doi:10.1016/j. buildenv.2015.04.002.
- Dore, C., M. Murphy, S. McCarthy, F. Brechin, (2015). Structural Simulations and Conservation Analysis-Historic Building Information Model (HBIM). "The International Archives of the Photogrammetry, Remote Sensing and Spatial Information Sciences", Volume XL-5/W4, 2015, 25-27 February 2015, Avila, Spain.
- Logothetis, S., Delinasiou A., and Stylianidis E., (2019). "Building Information Modelling for Cultural Herigate", Review: ISPRS Annals of the Photogrammetry, Remote Sensing and Spatial Information Sciences, Volume II-5/W3, 2015 25th International CIPA Symposium 2015, 31 August – 04 September 2015, Taipei, Taiwan.
- Vesho, N., Guri, M. & Marku, A., (2019). Ferrocement composites for strengthening of existing school structures in Albania, ISSN: 2319-9873. Journal of Engineering and Technology, Volume 4, Issue 5, pp. 103-107.

Digital models for the knowledge and protection of coastal heritage

Gennaro Pio Lento

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, gennaropio.lento@unicampania.it

Adriana Trematerra

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, adriana.trematerra@unicampania.it

Fabiana Guerriero

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, fabiana.guerriero@unicampania.it

Luigi Corniello

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, luigi.corniello@unicampania.it

Keywords: documentation, modelling, virtual reconstruction.

ABSTRACT

The knowledge of a city and its territory requires a comparison with the heritage of the past and the history of its urban and architectural framework. More attention must be paid to this testimony in order to preserve and protect the historical heritage inherited from the past. Talking about the territory and the city means referring to the culture of the landscape which, as is well known, has developed over the centuries and has established itself as a discipline of study in the years to come. Of fundamental importance in this context is the European Landscape Convention, which concerns the public management of the environment. The territory of contemporary cities is characterised by a landscape dimension for which, as the above-mentioned convention states, any cognitive, protection and valorisation action must be stimulated and encouraged. Landscape constitutes the image of the dynamic dimension of the territory and, as such, varies from place to place depending on human activities and needs in relation to natural resources, historical-architectural heritage and geographical qualities. The interest in the representation of abandoned spaces in the context of contemporary cities and their digital reconstruction determined the choice of the present investigation, focused on the study of the anthropised landscape of the Pontidea Canal, a narrow artificial waterway built in the 1st century AD in Eastern Greece. The case study presents a scarce graphic and iconographic documentation and, for this reason, the research envisaged the implementation of an innovative methodology to survey the remains of the walls protecting the Kassandra peninsula and the canal itself. The itinerary pursued concerns the three-dimensional image in its broadest signification with respect to both the perceptual categories of architecture and the forms of interpretation, from the photographic image taken by drone to the subsequent processing in point clouds using the photogrammetric technique to the digital reconstructions on the basis of the surveys performed. The aim of the research is to represent the current state of the places through instrumental surveys carried out with a four-powered drone and the subsequent digitisation of the data obtained by means of two- and three-dimensional images capable of perceiving the spaces and geometries of the structures in the surrounding landscape. The numerous reconstruction techniques, from drone surveying to terrestrial photogrammetry and data processing with the creation of virtual models, have allowed the elaboration of a database system that can be drawn on for future maintenance and conservation work. This activity is configured as a graphic basis for proposals to modify the architecture and landscape, aware of a legacy of the past but with attention to future possibilities.

References

Apollonio, F., I. (2010). La modellazione digitale. Bologna: Clueb.

Barba, S., Cardone, V. (2013). *Modelli grafici dell'architettura e del territorio*. Santarcangelo di Romagna: Maggioli.

Brusaporci, S. (2007). Modelli interpretativi dell'architettura medievale, L'Aquila: Arkhè.

- Corniello L., De Cicco A., (2020), Digital models and 3D visualization in archaeological contexts. The survey of the tombs of the kings in the city of Verghina in Macedonia. *The International Archives of the Photogrammetry, Remote Sensing and Spatial Information Sciences*, XLIV-4 / W3-2020.
- Corniello L. (2020). Photogrammetric 3d information systems for the management of models of cultural heritage. The International Archives of the Photogrammetry, Remote Sensing and Spatial Information Sciences, XLIV-4/W1-2020
- Manfredini, A., M., Remondino, F. (2010). *Modellazione 3D da immagini. Pipeline fotogrammetrica*. Pisa: Scuola Normale

Analysis and knowledge of the natural and built heritage. A case study in Salerno province

Adriana Trematerra

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, adriana.trematerra@unicampania.it

Enrico Mirra

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, enrico.mirra@unicampania.it

Rosa De Caro

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, rosa.decaro@unicampania.it

Luigi Corniello

University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", DADI, luigi.corniello@unicampania.it

Keywords: Historical Gardens, Conservation, Fruition

ABSTRACT

In the context of the cities' urban development, historic gardens have, as is well known, assumed a role of primary importance. Since the Second World War in Italy, these have been affected by the destruction of their vegetal and architectural components (Pasolini dall'Onda, 1975). In this regard, the contribution proposes an analysis of the Villa d'Ayala Gardens complex in Valva, in the province of Salerno, with cognitive operations aimed at protection and valorisation. The creation of this heritage dates back to the 18th century and its spatial configuration follows the taste of the time characterised by the so-called 'landscape' or English garden (Verderosa, 2016). The original nucleus was an ancient tower built in 1108 by the Norman lord Gozzolino. The latter was succeeded by the Valva family, whose last descendant was Marquis Giuseppe Maria. The latter commissioned the construction of a personal holiday residence near the ancient tower and an annexed park covering an area of seventeen hectares (Mauro, 2004). On his death in 1831, all his possessions, including the new garden complex, passed to the Spanish-born d'Ayala family. An important figure was that of Marquis Francesco d'Ayala Valva, who was responsible for the completion of all the construction and embellishment of the gardens, through the creation of numerous statues and fountains and various points of interest: the neoclassical temple, the Italian-style garden of Diana, the castle and the little theatre of greenery. Upon the death of the Marquis in 1951, the Gardens of Villa d'Ayala were donated to the Sovereign Order of Malta, which still owns them today. With the 1980 earthquake, the garden and the architectural structures inside suffered extensive damage until it was gradually abandoned. This situation persisted until 2007, when the gardens were reopened to the public, but in the absence of a reasoned plan for adequate maintenance and use. In this context, the research envisaged a knowledge process aimed at documenting the current state of conservation through remote SAPR survey campaigns, carried out using drones, a

necessary tool for any future operations aimed at the maintenance and conservation of the historic heritage (Carocci & Circo, 2015). The acquired data were processed to obtain threedimensional models, to be used as a basis for the elaboration of material and degradation pictures of the preserved architectural structures. The research carried out can be considered as a possible method of interpretation, the results of which are to be understood as a cognitive database to be used for the elaboration of guidelines aimed at the conservation and fruition of the Villa d'Ayala Gardens complex, currently in disuse and strongly degraded.

- Bignardi, M., De Martino, A., Mauro, L., Villani, G. (2004). La committenza di un sogno. L'opera dello scultore Donatello Gabbrielli per il castello di Valva. Salerno: Edizioni 10/17.
- Carocci, C., Chiara, C. (2015). Il rilievo per il restauro. La loggia di palazzo Ardinghelli a L'Aquila. "AID Monuments. Materials techniques restoration for architectural heritage reusing", I, 134-142.
- Catalano, M., Panzini, F. Giardini Storici (1985). Teoria e tecniche di conservazione e restauro. Roma: Officina Edizioni.
- Cazzato, V. (1989). Tutela dei giardini storici. Bilanci e prospettive: Roma: Ufficio Studi, Ministero per i Beni culturali ed ambientali.
- Manfredini, A.M., Remondino, F. (2010). *Modellazione 3D da immagine*. *Pipeline fotogrammetrica*. Pisa: Edizione della Normale.
- Pasolini dall'Onda, D. (1975). Restauro del verde storico nella pianificazione del territorio. Bollettino "Italia Nostra", 128, 33-40.
- Verderosa, A. (2016). Villa D'Alaya-Valva. La bellezza della rinascita. "Progetto", 2, 78-81.

Social media and digital technologies: interactive guides for the city of Florence

Ylenia Ricci

University of Florence, Dipartimento di Architettura, ylenia.ricci@unifi.it

Andrea Pasquali

University of Florence, Dipartimento di Architettura, andrea.pasquali@unifi.it

Keywords: Digitalization; Social Media; Cultural Heritage

ABSTRACT

Within the city, Cultural Heritage is one of the strongest components of social and intellectual identity. The current historical period has brought to light a need that was already arising over the past few years, the instrumentalisation of Cultural Heritage, making it strategic for the economy of the location. During the time when the process of digital globalization has made it possible to disseminate the image of the city through the form of its Built Heritage in the same way, social media has made it possible to break the distances and bring messages and knowledge in the immediacy of the digital. The paper presents the study applied to the digitization of Cultural Heritage, which encodes the real into digital copies, and its dissemination through dedicated social media applications. The intent is to highlight how the means of social platforms, when used and managed for academic and cultural dissemination purposes, develop a strong potential useful for scholarly goals and in close relationship with possibilities of developing or enhancing economic strategies related to the area. The work presented uses digital architectural survey techniques for recording Cultural Heritage and relates them to virtual environment management applications. This first and substantial part is followed, in order to make the product usable and spreadable, by observing the possibilities of creating AR applications that easily dialogue on social platforms and with generic web pages. In this way, it is intended to present a path of work, for dimensional and material survey, which has at its conclusion an alternative type of synthesis to traditional representation techniques. By producing, therefore, elaborates that are more flexible (expanding the range of users) and already codified with digital methodologies of dissemination and fruition arriving at products of scientific value but with the smart character of our digital contemporaneity, which are also capable of fulfilling strategic economic tasks and constituted by languages that open the use to new generations. The theme under study was applied to the Florentine territory, a container for centuries of outstanding sculptures, architectural elements and sites of interest, often forgotten by the masses of tourists and the citizens themselves. The objective achieved was the verification of the possibility of applying digital means, through social media, to Cultural Heritage but also the verification of compatibility of the chosen application format with the different social platforms.

- Abhijit, D., Ortiz, R. M., Weigert, A., Paladini, A., Min, A., Gyi, M., Su, S., Fai S and Quintero, M., (2019) Recreating cultural heritage environments for vr using photogrammetry, in ISPRS - International Archives of the Photogrammetry, Remote Sensing and Spatial Information Sciences. XLII-2/W9.
- Atkinson, K. B., (2001) Close Range Photogrammetry and Machine Vision; Caithness: Whittles Publishing.
- Camiz, A. (2017), Bridging a divided island with the Cyprus Network of Urban Morphology, U+D urbanform and design, 05(06), 125.
- Dixon, J., Verdiani, G., & Cornell, P. (Eds.). (2017). Architecture archaeology and contemporary city planning: Issues of scale: Proceedings of the international workshop. Raleigh, N.C.: Lulu Press.
- Fernández-Palacios, B., Morabito, D., Remondino, F., (2016) Access to complex reality-based 3D models using virtual reality solutions. Journal of Cultural Heritage.
- Guidi, G., Russo, M. and Beraldin, A. (2010). Acquisizione 3D e modellazione poligonale. McGraw-Hill.
- Hellman, T., and Lahti, M., (2018). Photogrammetric 3d modeling for virtual reality.
- Pucci, M. (2013), Prima che appaia il "divieto di fotorilievo": considerazioni sulla fotomodellazione, in Disegnarecon Vol. 6, N. 12, Disegnare con la fotografia digitale, Pablo Rodríguez-Navarro (editor). Bologna: Dipartimento di Architettura, Università di Bologna.

Climate and Conservation in Albanian Museum Buildings.

Etleva Bushati

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, etlevabushati@yahoo.com

Keywords: Museum environment, preventive conservation, indoor climate.

ABSTRACT

Museum buildings are supposed to preserve important and in many cases unique, cultural heritage objects from outdoor climatic conditions. The collections are not only the museum's heart, around them circulate numerous professionals and a great number of visitors. Considering the functions that a museum needs to complete it can be stated that the museum building is not only specific but also rather complex. In the museum meeting the demands of collection, building, and visitors is not a simple task, regarding the indoor climate. In this complicated context, today's concern for the research and scientists of cultural heritage is the fact that the trend of artifacts' lifespan goes toward their final destruction. Even for scientists, it seems impossible to stop this trend. So far, science has not been able to find the "mechanism of immortality" of cultural heritage objects. Nevertheless, current scientific work has enabled the slowdown of degradation rates to the minimum through preventive conservation.

This study aimed to measure, evaluate and analyze the building's facilities indoor climatic conditions focusing on the thermo-hygrometric parameters, which are key control variables to ensure the conservation of artifacts in museums. The study is based on concrete measurements made in three Albanian museums, which have different climatic characteristics. The data of this study showed the real climatic situation and the collection risk. The study showed that museum buildings need refurbishment aiming to improve the indoor climatic conditions for artifacts' conservation.

- Balen, K. V. (2015). Preventive conservation of historic buildings. Restoration of Buildings and Monuments Materials science, Conservation of architectural heritage, Sustainable construction. Basel: Birkhäuser Verlag GmbH
- Bushati, E. (2016). Kushtet mikroklimatike të godinave të muzeve në Shqipëri. Influenca e parametrave termohigrometrik në konservimin e veprave të artit prej druri. (Raste të studiuara). Tirane: PHD thesis.
- Michalski, S. (2004). Care and Preservation of Collections. In Running a Museum. A Practical Handbook. Paris: ICOM.
- Michalski, S. (1993). Relative Humidity: A Discussion of Correct/Incorrect Values. ICOM Committee for Conservation, Vol 2. Paris: ICOM.
- Plenderleith, H., Philipott, P. (1960). Climatology and conservation in museums. Museum, vol.XIII, no. 4, UNESCO.
- Thomson, G. (1986). The museum environment. 2nd ed. Oxford, U. K.: Butterworth-Heinemann.

O6 BUILDING IN THE 21ST CENTURY



Digitalisation of Architecture and Acoustics of Music Theatres to Preserve **Cultural Heritage**

Sophie Schauer

HTW University of Applied Sciences, sophie.schauer@htw-berlin.de

Jürgen Sieck

HTW University of Applied Sciences, juergen.sieck@htw-berlin.de

Federico Cioli

University of Florence, federico.cioli@unifi.it

Andrea Lumini

University of Florence, Andrea.lumini@unifi.it

Stefano Bertocci

University of Florence, stefano.bertocci@unifi.it

Nataliya Shakhovska

Lviv Polytechnic National University, nataliya.b.shakhovska@lpnu.ua

Keywords: Auralisation, Digitalisation, Cultural Heritage

ABSTRACT

Modern information technologies have become an integral element in the landscape of experiencing art and cultural heritage. Apps for a museum visit or live streaming of theatre performances, operas or concerts into private homes or public places belong to the common toolbox used for enhancing the audience experience. Virtual walks through 3D models created from real-world heritage sites have been employed in many areas, offering a valuable alternative to the physical experience, e.g., in architecture, archaeology, art, games, or tourism.

This paper functions as a follow-up on the progress achieved during the AURA project over the course of the past year. AURA is a European project that takes a novel approach to experiencing culture with state-of-the-art technology in digitalisation and auralisation. Technical partners from Italy, Germany and Ukraine have worked together in the fields of digitalisation, auralisation and neural network development, to create a unique way of virtually visiting representative music theatres in each of the countries.

With the help of modern digitalisation techniques, realistic models of the Konzerthaus Berlin, the Teatro del Maggio Florence and the Lviv Opera House have been created. These centimetre exact models were the basis of further auralisation implementation. Auralisation can simulate an acoustic environment based on the room's geometry and its material parameters. In virtual

reality, a realistic-sounding replication of the real-world space is created, and can therefore help in preserving or reconstructing cultural heritage sites, not only the geometry of the building with all the details (stuccowork, furniture, materials, paintings, pictures, lamps, ...) but also the acoustic properties such as sound, echo and reverberation.

Many use cases can be derived from these applications. The usages for different target groups will be explored during the further course of the AURA project:

- For artists i.e., the orchestras, soloists, singers, conductors, directors, choreographs, actors, etc. by providing them with a better understanding of the acoustics of the spaces they perform in.
- For the audience e.g., aficionados wanting to experience certain music in different halls or theatres.
- For the culture and tourist market e.g., new ways of monetising digital events, or using auralised spaces to enhance their marketing strategies or ticket sales.

Our approach merges the digital acoustic experience with the 3D visual experiences and allows different stakeholders and target groups to experience sound exactly as it occurs in a specific physical environment or space. This tool will help conduct selected case studies, which can become blueprints for all possible performances, i.e., operas, operettas, ballet, modern music, and spoken theatre.

- Amann, S. & Heinsiu, J., (2021). Research for CULT Committee-Cultural and Creative Sectors in Post-Covid-19 Europe: Crisis Effects and Policy Recommendations, European Parliament. IDEA Consult, Goethe-Institut, 2021.
- Cao, B., Zhao, J., Lv, Z., Gu, Y., Yang, P., & Halgamuge, S. K., (2020). Multiobjective Evolution of Fuzzy Rough Neural Network via Distributed Parallelism for Stock Prediction. IEEE Transactions on Fuzzy Systems, 28(5), 939-952. https://doi.org/10.1109/tfuzz.2020.2972207
- Cioli, F., & Ricci, Y., (2020). L'officina profumo-farmaceutica di Santa Maria Novella. Dalla nuvola di punti alla realtà virtuale. Connettere - un disegno per annodare e tessere. Connecting drawing for weaving relationships. https://doi.org/10.3280/oa-548 .107
- Katz, B. F., Murphy, D., & Farina, A., (2020). The Past Has Ears (PHE): XR explorations of acoustic spaces as cultural heritage. In International Conference on Augmented Reality, Virtual Reality and Computer Graphics, 91-98. Springer, Cham.
- Kersten, T., Drenkhan, D., & Deggim, S., (2021). Virtual Reality Application of the Fortress Al Zubarah in Qatar Including Performance Analysis of Real-Time Visualisation. KN - Journal of Cartography and Geographic Information, 71(4), 241-251. https://doi.org/10.1007/ s42489-021-00092-1
- Schauer, S., Bertocci, S., Cioli, F., Sieck, J., Shakhovska, N. & Vovk, O., (2022). Auralization of Concert Halls for Touristic Purposes. i-com, 21(1), 95-107. https://doi.org/10.1515/icom-2022-0008
- Tronchin, L., Merli, F., Manfren, M., & Nastasi, B., (2020). Validation and application of threedimensional auralisation during concert hall renovation. Building Acoustics, 27(4), 311-331. https://doi.org/10.1177/1351010x20926791

Living behind the double-walls

Anjeza Llubani

Graz University of Technology, Institute of Urbanism, anjeza.llubani@student.tugraz.at

Edlira Koleci

Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, edlira.koleci@fin.edu.al

Keywords: Sustainability, resilience, and city planning

ABSTRACT

Albania experienced massive migration after the fall of communism. Due to the rapid economic, legal, and societal transformation, people start moving from rural or smaller towns to bigger cities, particularly to the capital. The massive immigration of people from different provinces towards the capital of the country, Tirana, caused a rapid and chaotic urban spread and fragmentation of the territory. The radical privatization and liberal economic policies, the rapid urban extension and the housing needs, and the low level of state regulation and control opened-up various opportunities for private dwellings. Housing construction, previously undertaken by state enterprises, was substituted by private companies or individual initiatives which brought many constructions according to the desire and economic capability of the owners, and where and how they wanted. We will focus here, only on a limited case of the manifestation of privatization of the post-socialist dwelling: the so-called 'gated community or walled-in housing' (the privately governed and secure neighborhoods), which spread all over the urban areas and has been increasing constantly since then, forming a new part of the suburbanization process and exhibiting considerable differences in terms of type, location, and the degree of closure. The different typologies of (dwellings) living behind the double walls could be classified into two main types, the walled-in houses and the gated communities, according to the strata, economy, family type, and/or psychological factors. The methodology used in the study includes architectural and urban descriptive analysis and observation. The aim here is to identify why these wall closures or barriers have been created, and what kind of typification and impact they have brought to the fragmentation of the urban structure and the common open space. The paper concludes that the double-walled housing construction in Albania connects more to the sociological content and approach than to the architecture and technology of construction. Yet, its effects are obvious to the urban fabric since the doublewalled house and the gated community creates the 'rigid frontiers' of the urban structure and function in almost hermetical closed-off quarters that exacerbate the effect of physical, cultural, and social barriers between residents living within and outside the walls. This way of living behind the hard blind screens without any visual communication not only add to the urban fragmentation but furthermore, it neglects the concept of common open space and brings great class differentiation and non-socialization into the community.

- Blakely, E. J., & Snyder, M. G. (1997). Fortress America: gated communities in the United States.

 Brookings Institution Press.
- Blakely, E.J. (1999). The Gated Community Debate. Urban Land
- Blandy, S., & Parsons, D. (2003). Gated communities in England: rules and rhetoric of urban planning. *Geographica Helvetica*, 58(4), 314-324.
- Caldeira, T. P. D. R. (1992). City of walls: crime, segregation, and citizenship in São Paulo. University of California, Berkeley.
- Curutchet, M. (1987). A self-help housing project in rural Tunisia in retrospect. Nordic Africa Institute.
- Davis, M. (2006). City of quartz: Excavating the future in Los Angeles. Verso Books.
- Forty, A., & Forty, A. (2000). Words and buildings: A vocabulary of modern architecture (Vol. 268). London: Thames & Hudson.
- Frug, G. E. (1999). City Making: The City as a Legal Concept. 1. City Powerlessness. 2. A Legal History of Cities. 3. Strategies for Empowering Cities. Princeton University Press.
- Glasze, G., Webster, C., & Frantz, K. (2004). *Private cities: Global and local perspectives*. Routledge.
- Jaeger-Klein, C. (2018). The Traditional Tower Houses of Kosovo and Albania-Origin, Development and Influences.
- Johns, F. (2000). Citymaking: Building Communities Without Building Walls.
- Khan, T. H. (2014). Living with transformation: Self-built housing in the city of Dhaka (Vol. 1). Germany: Springer.
- Khan, T. H. (2014). Living with transformation: Self-built housing in the city of Dhaka (Vol. 1). Germany: Springer.
- Le Goix, R. (2005). Gated communities: Sprawl and social segregation in Southern California. *Housing Studies* 20(2), 323-343.
- Tafa, R., & Manahasa, E. (2021). An observation on gated communities in post-socialist Albania: three case studies from Tirana. *In Current Challenges in Architecture and Urbanism in Albania* (pp. 79-97). Springer, Cham.
- Zevi, B., Gendel, M., & Barry, J. A. (1957). Architecture as Space. How to look at Architecture. Journal of Aesthetics and Art Criticism, 16(2).

The footprints of nowadays cities for the next generation

Saimira Arapi

Polytechnic University of Tirana, saimira.arapi@gmail.com

Enkela Alimadhi

Bilkent University, enkelaalimadhi@bilkent.edu.tr

Keywords: urban space, spatial perception, Albania

ABSTRACT

The environment we are currently living is changing rapidly and with change rupture and neglection the exiting urban patterns and architectural forms, having already an identity, is happening. These occurrences are influencing the future of cityscapes design, in particular the form shaping of the urban space. Conceivably, one should understand the importance of urban space form shaping for future design decisions.

The main actors in the urban space are the users and the built environment composed of the buildings and space. Both built environment physical components are in a continuous and infinity interaction with the users. Their interaction occurs introvertedly and/or extrovertedly based on their functional needs. Considering such interactions and the above occurrences this exploratory paper ponders to answer these questions: Which are the footprint of nowadays form-shaping requests? What heritage are we creating for the future generation? Is the urban space following the same form-shaping as in the previous history of human being? As Le Corbusier formulates the process of spatial perception and the resulting design strategy for the Modern Movement as follows: "An architecture must be walked through and traversed. Thus, equipped with his own two eyes and looking straight ahead, our man walks about and changes position, applies himself to his pursuits, moving in the midst of a succession of architectural realities. He re-experiences the intense feeling the has come from that sequence of movements. This is so true that architecture can be judges as dead or living by the degree to which the rule of movement has been disregarded or brilliantly exploited." Based on this but also on the living experience in our cities this paper will study the form shaping of urban spaces using spatial perception via movement as a measuring component.

Firstly, by demonstrating the historical development of some public places in different Albania's cities. Secondly will give some collective experience memories overtime, especially place's toponym. Then, reveal some urban spaces, buildings and users request for the architect/ urbanist of to-day. To conclude, this paper considers planning as the perfect way to achieve the best results but we assume that exploring the living experiences is the optimal way to satisfactorily fulfill the society needs.

Carmona, M., Heath, T., Tiesdell, S., & Oc, T. (2004). Public Places Urban Spaces. *Urban Design Quarterly*, 90, 40.

Cuthbert, A. R. (2008). The form of cities: Political economy and urban design. John Wiley & Sons.

Gehl, J. (2013). Cities for people. Island press.

McCarter, R., & Pallasmaa, J. (2012). Understanding architecture: A primer on architecture as experience. Phaidon Press Limited.

Montgomery, C. (2013). Happy city: Transforming our lives through urban design. Penguin UK.

Sim, D. (2019). Soft city: building density for everyday life. Island Press.

Speck, J. (2018). Walkable city rules: 101 steps to making better places. Island Press.

Whyte, W. H. (1980). The social life of small urban spaces.

Real estate market trends development in Astir from buyer's preferences

Kledina Sallaku

Epoka University, Faculty of Architecture and Engineering, Department of Architecture, ksallaku18@epoka.edu.al

Sabrina Sadushi

Epoka University, Faculty of Architecture and Engineering, Department of Architecture, ssadushi18@epoka.edu.al

Keywords: buyer's preferences, profiling, real estate market

ABSTRACT

In the last twenty years, Tirana's growing population is paralleled by inflation in the housing market in terms of demand and prices. This resulted in Tirana covering nearly 80% of the entire Albanian real estate market. The study focuses on one of the most abrupt and rapidly developed areas, "Neighborhood 14", informally known as "Astir", wherein such a small surface the demand for housing has increased drastically. The key motive that drove the research was to identify factors that influence the buyer's decision, other than the economical one. This study aims to identify the buyer's preferences and needs that are unique to the area of "Astir" and help profile the buyer. The methodology used is of qualitative nature based on literature review and recorded interviews, where the interview template consists of openended questions. The interviews conducted, are directed toward a focus group of real estate agents that represent the housing market of Astir and have a better understanding of the local client's needs and demands. The contribution of this paper is to bring to surface the market preferences of Albanian households regarding three main categories that have had a significant advancement in recent years: urban space, building construction and interior space. Lastly, it results in profiling two main categories of buyers significant to the area. This will help in improving the future residential development of "Astir" by having a clearer perspective of what the real estate market requires the most.

- Cho, V., Huang, C., (2011), Professional commitment, organizational commitment, and the intention to leave for professional advancement, Information Technology & People, 25(1), 31-54.
- El-Nachar, E. (2011). Design quality in the real estate market: Clients' preferences versus developers' interest.
- Grum, B., Grum, D.K. (2015). A model of real estate and psychological factors in decision-making to buy real estate.
- Guga, J., (May 2016) On Architecture: Scale of design from micro to macro. https://www.academia.edu/23446537/CFP_On_Architecture_-_Scale_of_Design_from_Micro_to_Macro
- Ibem, E, O., (2012), Residents' perception of the quality of public housing in urban areas in Ogun State, Nigeria, International Journal of Quality & Reliability Management, 29(9),1000-1018.
- Lam, K, C., Wang, D., Lam, M, K, C., (2008), The TQM journey of Hong Kong building contractors: from a self-assessment perspective, The TQM Magazine, 6,556-569. Sakthivel, P. B., Nazeer Ahmed, M.F. (March 2013). A Study to Determine the Home-Buyer's Preferences through Voice of Customer, (V3, PP 26-32). http://iosrjen.org/Papers/vol3_issue3%20 (part-3)/E03332632.pdf
- Millhouse, J.A. (2005). Assessing the Effect of Architectural Design on Real Estate Values: A QualitativeApproach. https://dspace.mit.edu/bitstream/handle/1721.1/33195/66140875-MIT.pdf?sequence=2&isAllowed=y
- Palicki, S., (2020). Housing Preferences in various stages of the human life cycle. https://www.sciendo.com/pdf/10.2478/remav-2020-0008
- P.J. Forsythe, (2012), Profiling Customer-perceived service quality expectations in made-toorder housing construction in Australia, Engineering, Construction and Architectural Management, 19(6), 587-609.
- Saadi, D., Tirosh, ent, al. (May 2021). The role of social vs. physical environmental nuisances in affecting stress among Jewish and Muslim women in Israel. https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0048969720380050
- Simmons, R. (2004). What home buyers want: Attitudes and decision making among consumers. https://www.mae.co.uk/assets/pdfs/151123_Mae_Architects_What_Home_Buyers_Want_Housing_Architecture.pdf





Adriana Trematerra, born in Naples on 12 September 1992, is PhD student 35th Cycle SSD ICAR/19 at the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design of the University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", with a thesis in co-tutorship with the Polytechnic University of Tirana on the Balkan religious heritage. Graduated with honours in Architecture in 2018 at the University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli" with a thesis in drawing entitled "Il Giardino Inglese della Reggia di Caserta. Il disegno dell'architettura dell'ospitalità". She has carried out several periods of research activities at the Polytechnic University of Tirana. In 2018 she is the winner of the prize within the competition of the VII International Symposium "the Mediterranean Coastal Monitoring". She is the author of contributions in conference proceedings and journals and has participated as a speaker in international conferences.



Ahmet Melih Öksüz graduated from Department of Architecture at Karadeniz Technical University in 1985. In the same department, he completed his master's degree in the field of urbanism in 1988 with his thesis titled "Zoning burdens imposed on city plans by the zoning amnesty (Implementation of law no. 2981 and its results: The example of Trabzon)". In 1997, he completed his doctorate with the thesis titled "A model that can be used to predict the dimensions and spatial distribution of urban functions-vector autoregression: The example of Trabzon". Currently, he is the head of the Department of Urbanism in the Architecture Department of the Faculty of Architecture at Karadeniz Technical University and continues his education, training and research activities.



Andrea Lumini got his PhD Students from the University of Florence at the school of architecture. He was doing his doctoral curricula in survey and representation of architecture and landscape. Andreas has expertise in structure from motion and photogrammetry, and is currently working on digitalising the Teatro del Maggio in Florence as part of the AURA project



Andrea Pasquali, Architect. Degree in Architecture in 2011 at the University of Florence. In 2020 post-graduation at the second-level professional Master's programmes in Documentation and Management of Cultural Heritage. Currently a PhD student in Survey and Representation of Architecture and the Environment at the Department of Architecture of Florence.

Technologist at the Informatic Laboratory of the Department of Architecture of the University of Florence (LiA). Since 2011, teaching assistant at the Architectural Drawing course and since 2012 tutor and teaching support in the use of software for digital surveying, photogrammetric processes, management and processing of digital graphics in 3D environment. As a matter of fact in research on new technologies and cultural heritage. Since 2018 member of reviewers college of the conference on Cultural Heritage and New Technologies - Stadtarchaologie in Wien.



Angela Benfante Architect and PhD in Architecture. Graduated in April 2014 at the Florence School of Architecture. Obtained the title of PhD in April 2019, XXXI cycle, curriculum in Architectural and Urban Design at the DIDA in Florence. Since 2014 he has been collaborating in design courses at the Florence School of Architecture as an expert on the subject (Architecture Design Laboratory IV, Architecture and Structure Laboratory, Architecture and Environment Laboratory). Member of research groups, she was tutor at the Workshop Space Light Architecture. Author of articles and essays, she carries out design and research activities practicing profession, participating in architectural competitions, conferences and workshops.



Angelo De Cicco, graduated student (SSD: Icar 17/Design), at the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Aversa, Italy. Architect, graduated with an international thesis entitled: Il disegno del patrimonio Unesco di Berat in Albania, Supervisor Prof. Arch. Luigi Corniello, Referee Prof. Andrea Maliqari. He has participated as a speaker at national and international conferences. He is co-supervisor for degree theses (ssd Icar/17) and author of numerous scientific publications.



Anjeza Llubani is a Ph.D. student at the Graz University of Technology. She completed her bachelor's and master's degree at the University of IUAV in Venice. After her graduation, she worked as an architect on various projects. Since 2012, she has been lecturing at different Universities in Albania, teaching courses on the History of Architecture, Restoration, and Evaluation of Architectural Heritage, and guest lecturer at the Polytechnic University of Bari, Italy. She is currently, Visiting Lecturer at the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism at the Polytechnic University of Tirana.



Beliz Büşra Şahin, graduated from the Department of Architecture at Cukurova University in 2016. She completed her MSc degree at Cukurova University, Department of Architecture in 2019. She worked as an architect in Adana Metropolitan Municipality between 2017 and 2021. She is currently doing her PhD at Karadeniz Technical University, in the Department of Architecture, and working as a research assistant. She is interested in urban morphology, urban conservation, and the historical environment.



Architectural studies - Polytechnic University of Tirana,
Albania, Faculty of Civil Engineering
Ass. Lecturer at Department of Architecture (PUT-FCE) -
CAAD
Postgraduate studies - Chalmers University of Technology
Lecturer at Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism (PUT) -
Transport and infrastructure and Urban design
PhD at Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism (PUT)

Besar Zifla has over 15 years of experience as an Architect, with a wide range of projects from Urban Planning to different sorts of civil buildings. He is also a dedicated lecturer at the Department of Urbanism, part of the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Polytechnic University of Tirana



Călin Dan

With a background in Art History and Theory, active as a writer, visual artist and curator. Author and leader of the projects Emotional Architecture, Anturaju' and Other Stories, Collective Authorship. Chief editor, "Arta" magazine (1990-1994); artistic director, Soros Centre for Contemporary Art Bucharest (1992-1995); co-founder Photo-Video department of the National Art University, Bucharest (UNArte, 1994); creative director Lost Boys Interactive Media, Amsterdam (2001-2002); advisor, Mondriaan Fund (2001-2006), and Pro Helvetia (2005); senior fellow New Europe College (2010-2012). Since 2014, he is director of the National Museum of Contemporary Art - MNAC Bucharest.

Participations at the biennales of: Istanbul; Venice; Sao Paolo; Sydney; and at the film and media festivals: Media, film and video festival Osnabruck; OSTranenie. Video Forum an der Stiftung Bauhaus Dessau; Ars Electronica, Linz and DEAF (Dutch Electronic Arts Festival), Rotterdam; ZKM Karlsruhe; Internationale Kurzfilmtages, Oberhausen; Rotterdam Film Festival. Recipient of the special prize at the International Festival of NewFilm, Split (2000), and of the Videonale Bonn Award (2001).



Danila Jacazzi is professor of the history of medieval and modern architecture and Deputy Director of the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design of the University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli". Considered one of the greatest experts in 18th century architecture in Italy, she has directed national and international research projects on Renaissance and 18th century architecture in southern Italy. She has participated in numerous scientific conferences and has published monographs for major publishing houses and essays on important architecture magazines. She is currently a member of the national scientific committee for the celebrations "Luigi Vanvitelli, il maestro e la sua eredità 1773-2023" and directs the research unit of the Vanvitelli University for an exhibition dedicated to the jewels of ancient Pompeii, in collaboration with the University "La Sapienza" of Rome and the Archaeological Museum of Naples.



Denada Veizaj graduated in 2007 in Architecture from the Polytechnic University of Tirana. In 2015, she concluded her PhD with a dissertation focused on mathematical apparatus and advanced analytical tools for the study of urban

Her research is based on the belief that advanced geometric systems help increase our abilities to read and examine urban patterns in the material and nonmaterial dimension, producing more compelling answers in terms of sustainable development.

In 2013 and 2016, she conducted post-graduate and post-doctoral studies at Erasmus University in Rotterdam, focusing on advanced theories of urbanism, urban dynamics and governance, and issues of economic geography.

Veizaj contributes to the Polytechnic University of Tirana since 2008 and currently holds the position of Associate Professor and Director of the Department of Architecture in the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism. She has also contributed to the Albanian Architects Association as General Secretary (2012-2016) and as a member of the Presidency (2012-2021).



Dimitra Gkitsa is a curator and cultural theorist whose work is situated on the intersection of memory studies, affect, contemporary art and the postsocialist visual cultures, with a particular focus on the geo-political region of the Balkans. Dimitra is the Alexander Nash Fellow in Albanian Studies at the School of Slavonic and East European Studies, University College London where she researches the legacy of post-industrialism in Albania. Dimitra gained a PhD in Visual Cultures from Goldsmiths, University of London. Her doctorate thesis explored art collectives in Southeast Europe. Before joining UCL, she was an Associate Lecturer in Visual Cultures at Goldsmiths, University of London, and a Visiting Lecturer in Critical and Cultural Studies at the University of Hertfordshire. Outside academia, she has collaborated with numerous non-for-profit art and cultural organisations, including the British Council in Athens and the Institute of Contemporary Arts, London.



Edlira Koleci is engineering director at Gener 2. She completed her degree at the Polytechnic University of Tirana. During her 10 years of professional career in the construction industry, she had gained valuable knowledge in architectural design and technology, building elements. Currently, she is Coordinating two big residential construction projects, Orbital Apartments and Vertical Forest Tirana, the latter one designed by the renowned architect Stefano Boeri. Along with her professional duties, she has been engaged also in the academia, being an assistant lecturer at the Polytechnic University of Tirana teaching courses on 'Architectural Technology' and 'Building Elements', with a focus on the function of different building elements and assemblies, architectural and construction technology.



Eliza Hoxha is an architect, graduated at University of Prishtina, Kosovo. In 2006 she finished her postgraduate studies at Catholic University of Leuven in Belgium with focus on Architecture of Human Settlements. Currently she is a PhD candidate at Technical University of Graz in Austria.

She is an author of the book "City and Love" an urban diary about the city of Prishtina published in Albanian 2013 and in English 2019.

Between, July 2011 until 2015 she was a President of the Executive Board of the National Gallery of Kosovo. Since 2013, she is a member of ECP-European Culture Parliament. In 2018 she represented Kosovo Pavilion at 16th Architecture

Because of her work and contributions, she was awarded by the President of Kosovo, Kosovo Women Network, Association of Kosovo Architects, BELLS Movement etc.

Eliza Hoxha works at the University of Prishtina / Faculty of Civil Engineering and Architecture / Department or Urbanism and Spatial Planning since 2000



Enkela Alimadhi is a trained architect and urban designer based in Ankara, Turkey. Ms. Alimadhi is a doctoral candidate at Bilkent University, Department of Interior Architecture and Environmental Design. She is currently working under the supervision of Assist. Prof. Semiha Yilmazer on audio-visual interaction effects on cognitive and psycho-physiological restoration in healthcare facilities. Her degree of master of science in Urban Design at Middle East Technical university is concluded with a thesis on case study titled "Defining In-betweenness as a new spatial entity, the case of Durana, Albania. Her research interest consist in architectural and urban design, environmental psychology, color application and design, and soundscape.



Federico Cioli is a PhD and Research Fellow in Architecture at the University of Florence, with expertise in historical research, digital survey, and cataloguing of architectures and cities. His research focuses on the relationship between Intangible and Tangible Cultural Heritage and the development of strategies for documentation and enhancement.



Enrico Mirra, graduated in 2018 with a thesis entitled. "The design of the Peschiera Grande in the park of the Reggia di Caserta". Since 2018 he has been PhD Student XXXIV Cycle in Architecture, Industrial Design and Cultural Heritage at the University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli" with a thesis on abandoned reinforced concrete structures in port areas along the Balkan coast, carried out in co-tutorship with the Polytechnic University of Tirana (AL). His work is documented by publications in conference proceedings, national and international journals. He has carried out research activities at the Faculty of Architecture of the University of Lisbon and at the University of Alcalá.



Etleva Bushati is graduated in Architecture and works as a lecturer and researcher at the Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Department of Restoration and Architecture Technology. Her field of research is relevant to cultural heritage, technology, and sustainable development. She has a Scientific Master and a Ph.D. degree in the field of Cultural Heritage Restoration and Conservation. She counts specializations and scientific qualifications, participation in international workshops and conferences, articles, publications, and participation in joint scientific projects.



Fabiana Guerriero, graduated with a degree in Architecture from the University of Campania Luigi Vanvitelli with a grade of 110 cum laude and press dignity, developing an international and interdisciplinary thesis that was submitted for reference. A PhD student in the XXXVI cycle, she has participated in various training courses and workshops in recent years. She has taken part as a speaker in national and international seminars and conferences and, in collaboration with various research groups, has written several highly international scientific publications. She has also conducted research abroad at the University of Lisbon and the Polytechnic University of Tirana



Fabio Naselli is an Italian Architect with a PhD in Urban Planning and Design. Currently, he is a Lecturer in Urban Design, Landscape Design and Urban Planning at the Architecture Department of Epoka University in Tirana, and a Board Member of the Research Centre CORDA at the same University. He is the Founding Director of the SpaRe.Life | IWS; Founder Vice-president of the Italian-Egyptian Research Centre CRUEC; and Board Member of the IEREK Scientific Committee. His primary expertise is in the fields of Cultural Heritage and Cultural Identity enhancement, Sustainable Integrated Tourism for local development, as well as Tactical Urban Regeneration, urban metabolism, urban landscapes, and Open Space Co-Designing practices. He is used to teaching a few university courses and leading scientific research activities at some universities and research institutions within the Mediterranean and European Regions. He got several publications and rewards, he is a member of a few international academic and scientific boards, and an active part of international research teams.



Felicia Di Girolamo, PhD Course in Architecture, Industrial Design and Cultural Heritage XXXVII cycle at the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Aversa, Italy, sector ICAR/18. Architect, she graduated in a Master's degree with honors in History of Architecture with a thesis entitled: Dal palazzo di città al feudo di campagna, i beni della famiglia Orineti ad Aversa e Giugliano, supervisor Prof. Danila Jacazzi. She has done several publications and articles and has been the winner of three Erasmus+ Traineeship scholarship resulting in a period of study abroad at the Universities of Cologne (2017), Thessaloniki (2018) and Barcelona (2019).



Fiona Nepravishta graduated from Polytechnic University of Tirana, Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, as well as IUAV University of Venice with distinction in the Master of Science degree program in Architecture. As a challenge oriented individual, she has participated in many architectural, urban planning and engineering conferences. Being a strong believer of the architecture and research combined with design thinking, she is currently working on various international projects with a primary focus on public buildings. Her goal is not only to be able to provide sustainable and attractive spaces for people, but also to create solutions and experiences by evoking unique emotional responses, as architecture has the capacity to transform. inspire and delight.



Florian Nepravishta is a full Professor at the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism (FAU), Polytechnic University of Tirana. He has many years of experience as Dean and Head of Department at PUT. His teaching activity and scientific research have been oriented toward architectural design, housing, heritage conservation, and urban regeneration. He has conducted scientific qualifications and teaching activities at several international universities. Also, he has participated in various scientific conferences and has published a series of scientific articles, references, and monographs.



Francesca Gasparetto has a BD in Architectural Restoration at University of Genova and a MD in Conservation and Restoration of Cultural Heritage at the University of Urbino, as well as a PhD at Università Politecnica delle Marche. Her research focuses on new digital methods to document the restoration process and on the communication of conservation interventions. In 2020, she founded an innovative startup named arturo srl-sb which developed a cloud software to document private and public art collections.



Francesco Collotti (Milano, 1960) is full professor at DIDA Università degli Studi of Florence, promoting not only the research on architectural identities, but also involved in international cultural and scientific programmes. His activity is a link between research, professional work and teaching (all together: learning). Builds at the moment in Italy, Jordan, Oman, Turkey and Germany. The research and the pilot-projects are particularly focusing the Mediterranean area (casestudies Balkans, Northern Africa, Alps, Middle and Near East). Recently took part to rebuilding Frankfurt a.M. city center (HausM34 and monumental pergola at DomRömer). Articles/essays and projects are published in international architectural reviews. Visiting ETH Zürich (1994-1996) and TU Dortmund (2000). Professor SSEAU Neaples and Politecnico di Milano-Facoltà di Architettura Civile. Visiting Professor in China at Jinan University 2012/2014. Full professor at EMADU Ecole Euromed d'Architecture, de Design et d'Urbanisme -Université Euroméditerranéenne Fès. Cordinator PhD Programme / Doctorate ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN CULTURES, KNOWLEDGE AND SAFEGUARDING OF CULTURAL HERITAGE.



Franceska Delia graduated as Architect at the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Polytechnic University of Tirana, Albania. During this period, she did a Master of Science specialized in Interior architecture with the theme of Adaptive Reuse, Exploring Spatial Potentialities and the Poetics of the Existing at the Faculty of Architecture and Arts, Hasselt University, Belgium. She later worked as a specialist at Directory of Territorial Planning, the Sector for Support of Draft Planning Documents National Agency of Territorial Planning. (AKPT)

Currently she is attending her Phd studies on the second year at the Faculty of Architecture in Ljubljana with the research topic Adaptive reuse of industrial sites and heritage as a driver of sustainable revitalization in Albania, Case study Elbasan



Gennaro Pio Lento, PhD student (SSD: Icar 17/Design), PhD Course in Architecture, Industrial Design and Cultural Heritage XXXVI cycle at the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Aversa, Italy. Architect, graduated with honours with an international thesis entitled: La Quinta della Regaleria in Sintra. The drawing of hypogean architecture, Supervisor Prof. Arch. Luigi Corniello, Referee Prof. Arch. Pedro Antonio Janeiro. He has participated as a speaker at national and international conferences. He is co-supervisor for degree theses (ssd Icar/17) and author of numerous scientific publications.



Giorgio Verdiani

Researcher and then professor at the Dipartimento di Architettura, University of Florence, Italy, Architecture Degree Thesis, PhD in "architectural and landscape survey and representation". He is specialized in digital survey, multimedia, and 3D graphic. He teaches in various courses for his school and others in subjects from graphical representation to survey. Since 2001 he published more than 200 papers, books, articles, chapters. He has tutored about 600 bachelor and master degree thesis since 2008. He is active in the area of digital heritage since 2001, taking part or managing more than 300 survey campaigns in different countries, he took part to international conferences as speaker since 2002 and as member of scientific/organizing committees since 2006. From 2011 to 2021 he was the director of the Architecture Informatic Laboratory at his Department, he coordinated the DIDALABS system from 2013 to 2021, now he direct as scientific responsible the "eXtended Realities Laboratory".



Giergii Islami is an Albanian architect and educator. He studied Architecture in Eastern Mediterranean University (Cyprus), Conservation of Cultural Heritage at the University of Urbino "Carlo Bo" (Italy), and completed the PhD studies in the Polytechnic University of Tirana (Albania).

Since 2004, he contributes as lecturer and researcher at the Polytechnic University of Tirana (UPT), and from 2022 he holds the position of Associate Professor. His academic activity concerns architectural design, housing, environmental sciences and cultural heritage conservation. Islami is the co-author of several books and exhibitions focused on socialist architecture in Albania.

In the period 2013-2017, Islami held the position of Deputy Dean of the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism in UPT.

He also has an active engagement as an architect and planning consultant. He has been collaborating with local and international offices in significant projects and international competitions, winning several prizes.



Gjergj Ruci graduated in Architecture in 2001 at the Polytechnic University of Tirana (UPT). In 2009, he completed his Master studies in "Instruments and Methodologies for Cultural Heritage Conservation and Valorization" at the University of Urbino "Carlo Bo". In 2022 he concluded his PhD studies focused on the Influence of Color on the Perception of Urban Space.

In 2001, he became part of the academic staff of the Department of Architecture in UPT. Since then, he has been teaching architectural design and graphic communication. He tries to see architecture beyond the building, thinking that, in the creative process, the research and experimental journey is more important than the final product.

In 2001, Ruci co-founded the design studio "Alternatia '99" where he applied his ideas in the field of planning, architecture and interior design.

He complements his research in architecture with the study of art. In 2003 he published "Apollo in Delphi" (co-author) and in 2007 "El Greco, Life and Art".



Jonida Meniku has a Master degree in Architecture and PhD in Architecture and Urban Planning from Polytechnic University of Tirana. Currently she is a lecturer in Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Department of Restoration and Technology of Architecture. Jonida participated many international conferences, trainings and workshops. Her research interests is focus on interactive architecture, new technological tools and design modes, exploring creativity through Al applications and its effects such as spatial forms, structure elements, technology of materials and preservation, colors and lighting. She is a member of AAA. Meniku has a large experience on Public and Private designs, Supervision, Project Managment including Technical assistance services covering all phases of projects under FIDIC and PRAG contract's condition.



Juljan Veleshnja is an architect graduated in 2007 from the University of Studies of Florence, Faculty of Architecture, Italy. In 2012 he succeeded his postgraduate Master of Second Level studies at POLIS University in Urban Design and Landscape.

During the period 2009-2016 he was engaged as a full-time lecturer at the Faculty of Architecture and Design, POLIS University, Tirana. During this academic engagement he has been involved in teaching, research, projects and various publications.

In 2016 he succeeded the doctoral research degree PhD at DATA - Department in Environmental Design, in La Sapienza, University of Studies, Rome, Italy. The focus of the research has been on energy retrofitting strategies in the collective housing stock in Tirana, Albania.

Since 2016 he is engaged as a full-time lecturer at the Department of Urbanism, Faculty of Architecture and Urban Planning, Polytechnic University of Tirana. In August 2020 he was elected Head of the Department of Urbanism.



Jürgen Sieck received his degree in mathematics and his PhD in computer science from the Humboldt University zu Berlin. Now he is the head of the research group "INKA - Informations- und Kommunikationsanwendungen" and professor for computer sciences with a specialisation in mobile Applications, Augmented and Virtual Reality at the University of Applied Sciences HTW.



Kledina Sallaku is a fifth-year architecture student at Epoka University and her interests focus on energy-efficient architecture and renewable energy in buildings. Throughout her school years, she has achieved great academic results as well as participated in international and national summer academies related to architecture. Having always visualized studying in the field of architecture is what motivates her most.



Laura Baratin is Full Professor (SSD ICAR/17) at the School of Conservation and Restoration, University of Urbino (DiSPeA). She is an architect and professor of representation, member of the commission of MiC-MIUR (Ministry of Culture -Ministry of Education, University and Research) for accreditation and monitoring of restoration courses and former coordinator of the course in conservation and restoration of cultural heritage at the University of Urbino Carlo Bo. Her research is aimed at the documentation, survey and mapping of cultural heritage with new digital technologies. Together with the School of Urbino and the research team, she is currently working on digital documentation protocols for cultural heritage using different cloud softwares. The project with the Pesaro municipality started in 2021 together with the Pesaro startup arturo srl-sb as a simple documentation of the existing murals, and it is now evolving in the study presented above.



Liisa Seppänen has degrees in archaeology (PhD) and cultural history (MA) from Turku University, Finland and holds a title of assistant professor (docent) of archaeology in Helsinki University and of urban archaeology in Turku University. She has worked on several field work and research projects where she has mainly focused on building archaeology, city planning and urban development since the Middle Ages up to the present with aspects related to social complexity, participation, and heritage values. In recent years, she has also worked on graveyards and church archaeology. Presently, she works for the Finnish Heritage Agency and collaborates with Aalto University in a research project focusing in medieval churches in Finland. Since 2014, she has been an active member of Architecture, Archaeology and Contemporary City Planning network



Luigi Corniello, he is Professor (SSD: Icar 17/Design) at the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Aversa, Italy. Architect, PhD in Representation, Protection and Safety of the Environment and Structures and Government of the Territory XXVIII cycle (Icar 17/Design) in international co-operation with the Faculty of Architecture and Urban Planning of the Polytechnic University of Tirana (Albania). He is a member of numerous national and international scientific committees. He has participated as a speaker at national and international conferences. He is tutor of PhD theses (ssd Icar/17), PhD Course in Architecture, Industrial Design and Cultural Heritage and thesis supervisor. He is the author of 130 scientific publications.



Mariacristina Giambruno.

Architect and PhD in Conservation of Architectural Heritage and Post-graduate degree in Restoration of monuments, is Full professor in Restoration at the Department of Architecture and Urban Studies at Politecnico di Milano (Italy) and Head of the PhD in Preservation of Architectural Heritage. She has coordinated multidisciplinary team in numerous national and international studies on preservation of the historic centers and restoration of cultural heritage. She is involved in teaching and research activities on the protection and enhancement of cultural heritage, coordinating international cooperation projects in Albania, Iran, Armenia, Europe, Central Asia and China, in collaboration with organizations as Unesco and World Bank.



Mariateresa Giammetti is Associate Professor at Department of Architecture of Federico II University, where she teaches Architectural and Urban Design and Theory and Technique of Architecture at the Bachelor of Science in Architecture. Her academic studies cover a field of knowledge on architectural design, particularly the study of the sacred spaces of the three Abrahamic religions, due to the multicultural character of European cities and the transformation of the liturgical space after the Second Vatican Council; the 'care' and reuse of drosscape developed from a study of the major themes promoted by the circular economy paradigm, particularly with reference to the urban revitalisation project of brownfield sites with contamination problems. During her research activity, she has consolidated collaboration and exchange of knowledge with scholars and researchers interested in these issues, working on the construction of a cultural platform that is involving an international network of academics and institutions.



Marsela Plyku Demaj is an urban planner and restoration expert. She pursued undergraduate studies in Urban Planning and holds a masters' degree in Architectural and Urban Survey and Restoration. She has worked in the cultural heritage field since 2004, period during which she has been author and coauthor of many conservation and restoration projects and has contributed to the drafting of legal and sub-legal acts in cultural heritage. She has been part of expert groups that drafted nomination dossiers of world heritage sites in Albania (Berat / Gjirokastra, Lake Ohrid) and state of conservation reports related to these WH sites. Also, she has a considerable experience in design and implementation of capacity-building programs in cultural heritage under the UNESCO auspices. She is licensed in project design and implementation of works in the conservation and restoration and has particular interest in the values-based interdisciplinary approach involving nature, culture and community.



Megi Sinani is an Assistant Lecturer at U.Polis, at the Faculty of Architecture and Design, Dept. of Architecture & Urban Design. She contributes at the following courses: Architecture Studio and Theory 1A&B, Territorial and Settlement Analysis 1&2, Technology and Science of Construction 1&2, Urban Planning and Architectural Survey. Apart from her academic contribution, Sinani has been active as an architect in several projects operating as part of different teams. She has assisted in the technical investigations after the November 2019 Earthquake in Durrës, with the groups of experts, as part of the student team by checking and drafting the buildings damaged by the earthquake. Currently studying for a Post Master's degree in Digital Architecture, where she focuses on the study of interpreting and parametrizing data into values, by the means of computational architectural processes.



Nataliya Shakhovska got her professor title from the Ministry of Education and Science of Ukraine in 2014. Her research interests are NLP, Big Data processing, Database and data warehouse integration, machine learning, integrated systems and Data spaces. She is currently the head of the artificial intelligence department.



Nikolla Vesho is a Lecturer at U.Polis, at the Faculty of Architecture and Design, Dept. of Architecture & Civil Engineering; At the same time a lecturer at the Executive Master's in Restoration, Conservation and Valorisation of Cultural Heritage "Joint degree Ferrara-Polis University". He contributes at the following courses: Construction Science 1&2, Theory of Structures, Statics, Restoration of Cultural Heritage, Seismic retrofitting of Structures, with an academic experience of 5 years. He was the initiator of BIM applications at auditorium. Recently applying fragments from his PhD in the framework of "Optimization of Restoration issues, using innovative methods and programming through H-BIM tools. Vesho is active by providing scientific contributions with articles. Also, on-site in the direction of Seismic Engineering. He has assisted in the technical investigations after the November 2019 Earthquake in Durrës, with the groups of experts, including in the process groups of civil-engineering courses students.



Orsolya Anna Sudár is a PhD candidate researching historical revisionism and architecture history in Budapest and Berlin. Her historical research period is the long twentieth-century, while also looking at historical revisionism in its contemporary manifestations in the ECE region.

Alongside historical revisionism and comparative history, her interests also lie in the history of political thought, conceptual history, and urban studies. She is particularly interested in the methodological aspects of history writing. She has taught courses at ELTE on visual culture and art history; and was a teaching assistant at CEU for courses in the history of science and visual studies.

Orsolya is currently a research assistant at the Democracy in History work-group at the Democracy Institute, CEU, Budapest. She is a founding member of the political group Szikra Movement in Hungary.



Panu Savolainen is an architect and PhD (history) and professor (tenure-track) of history of architecture and architectural conservation at Aalto University (Helsinki, Finland). He earned his MA in Architecture from Helsinki University of Technology, MA in history from University of Turku and PhD in history from University of Turku. He is currently specializing in medieval archaeology and 20th century suburbs but his earlier research has focused on 18th and 19th century Turku and urban history. Savolainen has authored six books, including a children's book, and over 40 scholarly articles. He has also worked as a practicing architect, including housing design, urban planning and ruin conservation.



Per Cornell

Ordinary Professor in Archaeology, University of Gothenburg, Sweden. Defended his PhD in 1993. Has worked a lot as a teacher at all university levels, BA, MA, doctorate. Has constructed several MA and BA programs, including an MA program on field archaeology. Has been a teacher at several universities, including, among others, the UNT (National University in Tucuman) Argentina, the UNAM, Nicaragua, Kelaniya University, Sri Lanka, Universidad Autónoma, Barcelona, the D'Annunzio University at Chieti and Pescara, Italy etc. Has done extensive fieldwork in Europe and the Americas. Consultant for the INAH, México. Has organised a large number of workshops, conferences etc, and also formed part of the organisation of larger congresses, like the EAA in Gothenburg in 1998. Large number of publications, both articles and books. Founder of the AACCP with Giorgio Verdiani and Liisa Seppänen.



Raffaela Fiorillo, PhD in Architecture, Industrial Design and Cultural Heritage XXXIII cycle at the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design, University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli", Aversa, Italy, sector ICAR/18. Architect, she graduated in a Master's degree with honors in History of Architecture with a thesis entitled: Atlante delle Architetture triconche nel Mediterraneo. L'Africa romana; supervisor Prof. Danila Jacazzi e Prof. Ewa Jolanta Karwacka. She has done several publications and articles and has partecipated to a course in Rome: Pontificia Istututo di archeologia cristiana and she went to a period abroad in Barcelona at Univertitat de Barcelona (2020).



Riccardo Serraglio is professor of History of Architecture at the Department of Architecture and Industrial Design of the University of Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli". He teaches history of modern and contemporary architecture and history of design. Expert in 18th century architecture in Italy, he participated in national and international research projects on Renaissance and 18th century architecture in southern Italy. He participated in numerous scientific conferences at Italian and foreign universities and published monographs for major publishing houses and essays on important architecture magazines. He is currently engaged in research on traditional buildings and historic landscapes in Mediterranean countries.



Rinë Zogiani (b. 1992) has been a Teaching Assistant at the Faculty of Architecture within the University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina" since 2019, in the subjects of History of Architecture (Old and Middle Ages, Modern Architecture and Contemporary Trends) and Interior Architecture. Rinë is a Ph.D. candidate in IDAUP- International Doctorate in Architecture and Urban Planning, University of Ferrara, Italy, and POLIS University, Albania. She has completed her BSc. and MSc. degrees at the University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina," Faculty of Civil Engineering and Architecture.

Her research interests are history, theory, and critique of architecture and urban planning. Latest academic engagements include international conferences (GPD-Finland, EAHN- Albania, 16-17th Miklós Iványi International Ph.D. and DLA Symposiums - Hungary, TDW2021- ALBANIA, CISDAU - Romania), etc., and research articles, international workshops and research activities and publication indexed in Scopus.



Romir Mazari is an architect and has studied Architecture and Urban Design at Polis University, Albania. He received a professional master in Culture Heritage at the Polytechnic University of Tirana (Albania), and holds a master of science in Archaeology from the University of Tirana. He has been working at National Institute of Culture Heritage, while teaching at the Polis University as an invited lecturer. He contributes at the following courses: Architectural Survey and Restoration of Cultural Heritage, with an academic experience of 4 years. Mazari is active by providing scientific contributions with his main field of interest being restoration and research in cultural heritage. His work experience has been focused on architecture, environmental issues, construction and archaeology, but professional interests include also management of monuments and their restoration within archeological excavation. Currently, Mazari is the Co-Owner, Head of architecture and culture heritage department at GRAMA.



Ronela Çuku is an architect and restoration expert. She holds a university degree in Architecture from Eastern Mediterranean University, Turkish Northern Cyprus. She has also completed a postgraduate 2-year-specialization, in survey/ documentation and architectural restoration of cultural monuments from the Tirana Restoration Centre under the auspices of UNESCO. She has been working in the field of cultural heritage since 2007, during which time she has been the author and co-author of many conservation and restoration projects. She was part of the expert groups for the drafting of the World Heritage Sites Management Plans in Albania (Berat / Gjirokastër, Butrint). She is licensed in project design, implementation as well as supervision and commissioning of conservation and restoration works and has a special interest in the interdisciplinary approach based on values that include nature, culture and community.



Rosa De Caro, graduated in Architecture (LM-4) in March 2020 with a thesis in Planning and Design, at the University of Campania Luigi Vanvitelli, Department of Architecture and Industrial Design in Aversa. After the five-year university studies and the different opportunities and experiences within the Department and the multiple collaborations with the Polytechnic University of Tirana, since November 2021 she is a PhD Student at the same Department and carries out Research Activities in Co-Tutoring, with the Polytechnic University of Tirana (Albania).



Sabrina Sadushi is a fifth-year architecture student at Epoka University. Her design portfolio includes many successful academic projects that take a humanistic approach in their design solutions. In her fourth year of study, she delved deeply into the real estate patterns of Albania as a still unexplored area. With her work, she wants to provide research-based insights and guidelines that can be useful for future projects.



Saimira Arapi is an Architect and she holds a Scientific Master degree in Architecture. She has professional experience of 8 years in various private and public institutions. Her professional experience is a merge of both, practice in residential environments design and implementations, and academia. She has participated in difference conferences focused on the historical development of urban and architectural built environments. She currently leads her own architectural office and continues as a guest instructor at Polytechnic University of Tirana.



Sofia Pieri

I am an architect graduated at University of Florence in Architecture with 110/110, where I continued my studies at the School of Specialization in Architectural and Landscape Heritage thanks to a national scholarship. I completed my studies with software courses and a post degree Master in Architecture for fashion and retaill.

My passion for research led me to continue my collaboration with University with a theme concerning urban analysis of the historic village of Massa Marittima in Tuscany, with the development of new mechanized paths to overcome the numerous different levels and architectural barriers. During my university activity, I wrote some scientific articles and participated in international conferences with the research topic, developed during my Specialization thesis' Knowledge and design strategies for a built heritage and its landscape': from digital survey to obtain a BIM model with the development of solutions to enhance a place.

Since 3 years I'm working for a architectural firm in Florence named Archea where I follow different projects at different design phase and Level of Details and I developed a good coordination strategy in BIM.



Sonia Pistidda

Architect and Ph.D. with honors in Architecture, Urban Design, Conservation of Housing, and Landscape. From 2001, she worked with the Department of Architectural Design of Politecnico di Milano (from 2013 to 2016 DAStU) as Research Fellow, collaborating on several projects about preserving cultural heritage. From 2007, she worked with Politecnico di Milano in international cooperation projects in Albania, Iran, Armenia, Pakistan, and Vietnam with Unesco and World Bank. Actually, she is a Senior Researcher at the Department of Architecture and Urban Studies of Politecnico di Milano; her expertise includes the issues related to the conservation and enhancement of cultural heritage, with a particular focus on emerging countries. From 2019 she is Co-Director of the Master (I and II levels) Design for Development, Architecture, Urban planning, and heritage in the Global South, promoted by DAStU.



Sophie Schauer is a master's student, studying Applied Computer Science at HTW Berlin. She is part of the INKA research group since June 2020 and is currently coordinating the AURA project, which implements auralisation solutions of cultural heritages. She is especially interested in the development of Augmented and Virtual Reality systems as well as Acoustics.



Stefano Bertocci is an architect and Professor of Architectural Survey at the University of Florence. He coordinates several research groups about various aspects of digital surveys, from the landscape to the urban areas. He has studied various Heritage buildings and historical centres both in Italy and abroad with particular attention to the Middle East.



Teuta Jashari Kajtazi is a Professor at the Faculty of Architecture, University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina." She is a Graduated Engineer of Architecture and Master of Arts, with a Doctor of Technical Sciences Degree from the Faculty of Architecture and Planning at the Technical University in Vienna - Austria, with the thesis "Behind the national identity: political and social activity through architecture - liberal socialism in Kosovo."

Her teaching experience since 1995 focuses on Modern Architecture and Current trends, Regionalism in Architecture, Modern heritage, and the History of Architecture (Old and Middle Ages). Research experience in the aforementioned fields and the identity in Architecture resulted in several international publications indexed in Scopus and Web of Science. International Teaching experience includes Universities such as CUNY In the United States, La Sapienza in Rome -Italy, University of Applied Sciences in Nysa-Poland, University "Mother Theresa" in Skopje-North Macedonia.



Veronica Tronconi is a Restorer of Cultural heritage with a MD in Conservation and Restoration of Cultural Heritage at the University of Urbino, and currently she's a PhD Candidate in Humanities and Communication at the University of Urbino. Her research field focuses on innovative and digital ways of communicating conservation processes and restoration interventions, both on -site an online. She is now developing a website for the dissemination of these topics, which is called Open Restoration.



Vjola Ilia is an Architect. She graduated MSc. in Architecture (2014-2019) and a Master's degree in Restoration of Cultural Monuments (2020-2021) at the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, the Polytechnic University of Tirana.

Since 2019 she has been working as an Architect at the "Smart Studio" in Tirana. Her work in the studio has to do with different design projects like residential buildings, hotels, beach resorts, restoration and interior design.

MSc.Vjola Ilia has contributed to the academic year 2021-2022 as a guest lecturer in the subject "Architectural Studio 3" in the 3rd year of Integrated Studies in Architecture at the Faculty of Architecture and Urbanism, Polytechnic of Tirana. Her practice activity and scientific research have been oriented towards architectural design, restoration, and preservation of historical heritage.



Ylenia Ricci (Viareggio, 1989), Architect, obtained her Master's Degree in 2018 at the University of Florence, where she is now Tutor of the Extended Reality Laboratory at DIDAlabs.

In 2019, she spent a year in Rotterdam as a trainee at NioArchitecten. Her main focus of interest lies in Virtual and Augmented Reality technologies and their use for disseminating the built heritage. Besides her academic affiliation, she works as a freelance Architect and she is also involved in independent digital imaging projects.

CIP Katalogimi në botim BK Tiranë AACCP 2022 : chronicles of ever-changing cityscapes :

Tirana, 24-25-26 November 2022 : book of abstracts / edt. Gjergji Islami, Denada Veizaj. – Tiranë : Universiteti Politeknik i Tiranës, 2022

124 f.; 21x27 cm.

ISBN 978-9928-4735-3-0

1.Planifikimi i qytetit 2.Qytete 3.Historia 4.Pasuria kulturore 5.Konferenca

711.4 (062)

